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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 20" Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders of the Company will be held at 17*" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 on Friday, August 28, 2015 at 02:00 -
p.-m. to transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2015,
together with Board of Directors’ Report and the Auditors Report thereon;

2. To appoint a director in place of Shri Achal Kumar Gupta, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. To fix the remuneration of the Auditors of the Company

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5) and 142 and all
other applicable provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) be paid a fee of Rs. 5,00,000/- (Five lakh Rupees
only) in respect of the audit of the Accounts of the company for the year 2015-16,
Rs. 60,000/- (Sixty thousand only) in respect of the Limited review for every quarter
and Rs. 75,000/~ (Seventy five thousand only) for consolidation purpose, plus out of
pocket expenses in connection with the audit work and such other certification fees
as payable from time to time."

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

4, To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) if any, the
following resolution as a “Ordinary Resolution”
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APPOINTMENT OF SHRI RAJESH KUMAR GUPTA AS DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

“"RESOLVED THAT Shri Rajesh Kumar Gupta (DIN: 07188093), who was appointed
as an additional director by the Board of Directors and who ceases to hold office
under section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under,
on the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a
director liable to retirement by rotation.”
By Order of the Board
For IFCI Financial Services Limited,

=
Place: Chennai Ashwin Kumar R
Date: July 24, 2015 Company Secretary

ASHWIN KUMAR. R
COMPANY SECRETARY
MEM No: A23845
Notes: F2, LAXMI FLATS, 8th STREET,
T.G.NAGAR, NANGANALLUR,
CHENNAI-81.
1. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of

Special business is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. CORPORATE MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SEND
CERTIFIED COPY OF BOARD RESOLUTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 89
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AUTHORIZING THEIR
REPRESENTATIVE TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING.

3. Members should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.
4. The relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the
- Statement under Section 102(1) will be available for inspection of the members
at the registered office of the Company on all working days during business
hours, upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

013:

————

ITEM NO.4:
Shri Rajesh Kumar Gupta was nominated as director by IFCI Ltd under Article 90(2)

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2

of Articles of Association of the Company to hold office of directorship till withdrawal
of his nomination. Subsequently, he was appointed as an Additional Director at the
meeting of Board of directors held on July 24, 2015

Shri R K Gupta is a seasoned banker with over 2'2 yeafs of experience in banking
and financial services industry including experience of over 11 years .in risk
management function. His skills in diverse areas include Credit and risk policy
formulation; Credit Appraisal particularly for SMEs and Infrastructure finance, Credit
Administration; Credit Risk Analysis; Risk Modeling; Credit Rating; Capital Adequacy;
Project Evaluation; Private Equity Investments; Venture Capital Financing;
Structured Finance; SME Industry Research; Advisory and Dissemination; Mobilizing
Resources; Liquidity Risk management, Market Risk Management; Asset-Liability
Management; Business Development; BFSI Risk Management Consulting and
Managing Client Relationships, etc. Currently, Shri R K Gupta is heading the Chennai
Regional Office of IFCI Ltd., as General Manager and is director of IFIN Securities
Finance Limited, IFIN Commodities Limited and IFIN Credit Limited. Shri R K Gupta
who is 47 years old has completed B.E (Mechanical) and CAIIB.

Shri Rajesh Kumar Gupta will hold the office of directorship only until the conclusion
of this AGM under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. In this regard, the
Company shall receive request in writing from a member of the company proposing
his candidature for appointment as Director of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of Section 160 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No.4 to be passed as an ordinary
resolution.



None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution except
and to the extent they are member of the Company, except Shri Rajesh Kumar

Gupta.
By Order of the Board
For IFCI Financial Services Limited,
Place: Chennai Ashwi mar R
Date: July 24, 2015 Company Secretary

ASDFWIN KIUIMAR. R
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(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Mame of the attending Member {in Black Letters)
Member's Folia/Account Number

Number of Shares held

I hereby record my presence at the 20" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Friday, August 28, 2015 at 02:00 p.m. at 17th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhj —
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- IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1995G0I1064034
Registered Office: IFCI Towers, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

FORM NO MGT-11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

CIN : U74899DL1995G0I1064034
Name of the Company : IFCl Financial Services Limited
Registered Office : IFCl Towers, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019

Email: ashwinkumar@ifinitd.in, Telephone: 044 2830 6600

Name of the
Member(s) :

Registered Address :

E mail Id :

Folio No / Client ID:

DPID:

I/ We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

(1) Name:
Address:
'Email ID:
Signature: , or failing him/her

(2) Name:
Address:
Email ID:
Signature: , or failing him/her

(3) Name:
Address:
Email ID:
Signature:
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20th
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, August 28, 2015 at 02:00 p.m. at
17th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

RESOLUTIONS
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2015, together with Board of
Directors’ Report and the Auditors Report thereon.

2. Appoint a director in place of Shri Achal Kumar Gupta, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Fix the remuneration of the Auditors of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Shri Rajesh Kumar Gupta as a Director of the Company

Signed this day of 2015.
Affix
Signature of the Shareholder Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of

IFCI Financial Services Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company hereby present the Twentieth Annual Report of

IFCI Financial Services Limited together with the Audited Financial Statement for the

financial year ended on March 31, 2015.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Amount in Rs.lakh

Gross Ex éhduture

Less: Interest

Less: Depreciation

Add: Reversal of provisions for Diminution in
the value of securities held as stock-in-trade

19.31

21.01

450.82

~ Particulars solidated
e | 2014
Operating Results:
Income from Operations 1908.06 1526.80 | 3046.84 | 2524.25
Other Income 315.53 385.36 387.17 447.60

2363.12

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts and
Advances/bad debts written off

Less: Exce tional item

d Tax Char

’N_et

Less: Curréﬁt year tax MAT - - 103.58 147.43
Less: MAT Credit entitlement - - - (.05)
: 19.82 48.72 19.82 49.05




2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Broking income has increased from Rs.1056 lakh in the previous year to Rs.1392 lakh
during the current year due to positive sentiments in capital market and consequently
higher participation by the retail investors.

Income from distribution of 3rd party products has increased from Rs.136 lakh to Rs.209
lakh during the current year due to active participation in the market and mobilising IFCI
Bonds.

Syndication fee income has come down from Rs.19 lakh to Rs.1 lakh during the current
year. Other operating income mainly comprises of wind mill income and delayed
payment interest.

Other income comprises of interest earned on fixed deposits kept with banks, rental
income from ICOM, profit on sale of Investments etc.

During the year, there has been decrease in employee cost from Rs.1063 lakh to Rs.921
lakh due to reduction of man-power.

Other expenses include payment of broking commission of Rs.343 lakh (last year Rs.204
lakh), commission paid in respect of 3rd party products of Rs.140 lakh (Rs.91 lakh), rent
paid of Rs.273 lakh (Rs.292 lakh) besides other expenses.

Increase in provision for doubtful debts during the current year is mainly in respect of
diminution in value of client collateral stocks as on 31.3.2015.

3. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCES
3.1 STOCK BROKING

The Company’s stock broking operations have witnessed growth during the
Financial Year 2014-15. Your Company is on the right path to add to its
clientele base significantly. The net brokerage income of the company
increased from Rs.1056 lakh in the previous year to Rs.1392 lakh.

6



3.2 INSURANCE COMMISSION

Insurance Commission earned during the year is Rs. 1.03 Lakh for the year
2014- 15 (previous year Rs. 1.00 lakh).

3.3 BROKERAGE FROM SELLING OF MUTUAL FUNDS

During the year, your company has earned an income of Rs. 19.67 lakh from
selling of mutual fund units as compared to Rs. 15.22 lakh in the previous
year.

3.4 DISTRIBUTION OF IPO'S & BONDS

During the year, your company has earned an income of Rs. 160.27 lakh from
distribution of IPO’s & Bonds as compared to Rs. 55.07 lakh in the previous
year.

3.5 DEPOSITORY SEGMENT

The Company operated as the Depository Participants of both NSDL and CDSL
during the year for the benefit of its retail and institutional client base. Total
Income received during the year 2014-15 was Rs. 66.42 lakh (previous year
Rs. 76.60 lakh).

3.6 NON FUND BASED ACTIVITY- MERCHANT BANKING AND INVESTMENT
BANKING

During the year the Company has earned fees of Rs.2.60 lakh (Previous year
Rs. 21.44 lakh).



3.7 INCOME FROM WINDMILL

During the year company has earned an income from sale of electricity of Rs.
48.10 lakh (Previous year Rs. 60.33)

. BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Presently India is seen as the world’s most attractive investment destination. With
the opening up of foreign direct investment (FDI) in several sectors, India is today
an eye-catching destination for overseas investors. The relaxation of norms by the
government has created a vast opportunity for foreign players, who are competing
for a greater role in the Indian market. Sectors projected to do well in the coming

years include automotive, technology, life sciences and consumer products.

India has also become a hotbed for research and development (R&D) and the
country is now a preferred destination for automotive R&D. It has been noted that
there was strong potential for growth in areas such as engineering analytics and
that significant talent could be found in ‘Deccan Triangle’ region, which

encompasses Pune, Bangalore and Hyderabad.

The US$ 1.2 trillion investment planned for the infrastructure sector in the 12th
Five-Year Plan will go a long way in improving export performance of Indian
companies and the Indian growth story, according to Union Minister for Commerce

and Industry, Government of India.

Investors in India continue to be optimistic about the country’s stock market
performance for 2015. Investors believe that the best equity opportunities in 2015

and over the next 10 years will be in India, with rest of Asia in second place.



5. OUTLOOK

IFIN shall adopt the following strategy in order to maintain its growth and
profitability for FY 2015-16.

>
»

v

Revamping of existing branches, closing of non-performing branches

Using the brand of its parent IFCI Limited, and sales and research team is
jointly and aggressively marketing to get more empanelment and market
share. o

Motivation of the employees by implementing incentive scheme.

Lot of emphasis will be given for new client development and cross selling of
third party products.

In Investment banking the plan is to concentrate on syndication of funds
required by SME.

6. SUBSIDIARIES

6.1

6.2

IFIN SECURTIES FINANCE LIMITED

IFIN Securties Finance Limited, a NBFC (formerly known as Narayan Sriram
Investments Private Limited) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial
Services Limited. It is engaged in the business of margin funding, providing
loan against shares & property, promoter funding etc.

IFIN COMMODITIES LIMITED

IFIN Commodities Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial
Services Limited, was incorporated to engage in the business of Commodity
broking.

IFIN Commodities Ltd, a registered member of the Multi Commodity
Exchange of India Ltd (MCX), National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange
Ltd (NCDEX) and National Spot Exchange Limited (NSEL), is primarily

engaged in the business of providing Commodity market related transaction
services.



6.3 IFIN CREDIT LIMITED

IFIN Credit Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCI Financial Services
Ltd. Currently it is not engaged in any operation. IFIN Credit Limited is in the
process of getting merged with IFIN Commodities Limited.

7. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 129
(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures pursuant to first proviso to sub-
section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form AOC-1 is given in Annexure-1.

8. DIVIDEND

No dividend is being recommended by the Directors for the year ended March 31,
2015.

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Board of Directors have no proposal to carry on any amount to any reserves
for the year ended March 31, 2015.

10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a) As at March 31, 2015, the Board consisted of 8 (Eight) Directors. The Company
has a Chairman and one Managing Director, four directors are independent
Directors and two IFCI Nominees. The Management of the Company is headed

by the Managing Director, who operates under the supervision and control of
the Board.
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(b) The changes in Directors during the financial year 2014-15 are as follows:

Shri Suneet Shukla resigned from position of Managing Director/director with
effect from 21.04.2014. Smt. Usha who was already a director of the Company
was appointed as Managing Director with effect from 21.04.2014. Shri V.
Ramanan and Shri Lalit Patangia were inducted on the Board on July 25, 2014
as independent director. The matter for appointment of Shri M.P. Rege and Shri

'M.V. Muthu as independent director for purpose of Section 149 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 was taken up at the meeting of the Board of directors held
on July 25, 2014. The appointment of all the independent directors mentioned
herein above was approved at the annual general meeting of shareholders held
on September 30, 2014.

(c) Shri A. V. Pushparaj was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company
w.e.f. September 1, 2014. Shri Ashwin Kumar R is the Company Secretary of
the Company.

(d) Five Board Meetings were held during the year. The dates on which the Board

meetings were held are as follows:

102" Board Meeting April 11, 2014
103" Board Meeting July 25, 2014

104" Board Meeting September 1, 2014
105" Board Meeting November 7, 2014
106" Board Meeting January 22, 2015

(e) The composition of the Board, number of meetings held, attendance of the
Directors at the Board Meeting and the number of the Directorship in other

companies in respect of each Director is as given herein below:-
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Sl. | Name of Director Attendance No. of other Directorships
No. Particulars 31 March, 2015
No. of Meetings | Other Director-ships (Including
during Private Limited Companies )
2014-2015
Held™ | Attended
1. | Shri Malay Mukherjee 5 5 6
2. | Shri Achal Kumar 5 5 9
Gupta
3. | Shri Manoj P Rege 5 4 1
4. | Shri M. V. Muthu 5 4 2
5. | Shri V. Ramanan® 4 4 7
6. | Shri Lalit Patangia® 3 2 -
7. | Shri O Ramesh Babu 5 5 4
8. | Smt. S Usha® 5 5 3
9. | Shri Suneet Shukla® 1 1 -

* No. of Board Meetings held during the tenure of directors in the financial year 2014-
2015.
@ please refer clause 11(b) of this report regarding changes in Directors during the

financial year 2014-15.
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11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
11.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:
(A) COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee of the Company presently consists of two Non-Executive
Independent Directors and one nominee of IFCL The Chairman of the
Committee is an independent director. The composition of the Audit committee

and attendance of directors at the meetings is shown below:-

Sl. | Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings

No. during the tenure of
respective directors in
FY 2014-2015
Held Attended
1} Shri Lalit Kumar | Chairman 2 1
Patangia* (Independent, Non-executive)
2| Shri M. V. Muthu | Member 4 3
(Non-Independent,Non-executive)
3| Shri Achal Kumar | Member 4 4
Gupta (Non-executive)
4| Shri M.P. Rege* Member 2 2
(Non-executive) |

*The Board at its meeting held on September 1, 2014 re—constituted the Audit
Committee by appointing Shri Lalit Kumar Patangia in place of Shri M.P. Rege.

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director, Statutory Auditors and Internal
Auditors are invited to participate in the meetings of the Audit Committee
wherever necessary, as decided by the committee. The Company Secretary acts

as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
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The Non-Executive Directors except nominees of IFCI Ltd are paid sitting fees for

every meeting of the Board and its Committees attended by them.

(B) THE NUMBER OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD AND DATES:
During the financial year 2014-15, the Audit Committee of Directors of the
Company met 4 times. The dates of the meetings were 11.04.2014, 25.07.2014,
07.11.2014 and 22.01.2015.

(C) TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall be in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include overseeing the vigil

mechanism / Whistle Blower policy of the Company.

11.2 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

(A) COMPOSITION
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company presently consists
of two Independent Directors and one director nominated by IFCI Ltd. The
composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of

directors at the meetings is shown below:-

S | Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during
No. the tenure of

respective directors in

FY 2014-2015
Held Attended
1. Shri M. P. Rege | Chairman 4 4

(Independent, Non-executive)
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S | Name of Director Category No. of Meetings during
No. the tenure of
respective directors in
FY 2014-2015
Held Attended
2. Shri M. V. Muthu | Member 4 3
(Independent, Non-executive)
3. Shri Achal Kumar | Member , 4 4
Gupta (Non-executive)
(B) THE NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD AND DATES:

©

During the financial year 2014-15, the Remuneration Committee which was re-
christined as Nomination & Remuneration Committee for the purpose of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 of Directors of the Company met four times.
The date of thé meeting is 11.04.2014, 25.07.2014, 01.09.2014 and 22.01.2015.

TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is in accordance with

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes:

e To approve the remuneration payable to directors and key managerial
personnel ("KMP” as defined by the Act).

e Recommend to the board the “formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director”.

e Recommend to the board the appointment of directors.

e Recommend to the board appointment of KMP and persons one level

below KMP of the Company.
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e Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance and support the
board and independent directors in evaluation of the performance of the
board, its committees and individual directors.

e Recommend to the board the remuneration policy as required under the
Companies Act, 2015.

e Performing such other duties and responsibilities as may required under

the Companies Act, 2015 and Board of directors from time to time.

11.3 OTHER COMMITTEES:

12.

13.

The Company also has committees such as Management Committee, Share

Allotment Committee, Investment Committee, etc:

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN AS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION
(3) OF SECTION 92

The Extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 in

Form MGT-9 is given in Annexure-I11.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is

hereby confirmed that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
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14.

15.

so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end

of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating

effectively.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
UNDER SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149

The Independent Directors of the company have declared that they meet the
criteria of independence in terms of sub-section (6) of ‘section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and there is no change in their status of independence.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER
DETAILS:

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and
other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 is given in Annexure-
I1I.
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16. AUDITORS

17.

18.

19.

M/s. Kalyanasundaram & Co, Chartered Accountants, Chennai are the retiring
auditors of the Company and they hold office till the conclusion of this Annual

General Meeting.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide letter dated July 9, 2015
have appointed M/s. Kalyanasundaram & Co, Chartered Accountants, Chennai as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2015-16. The
necessary resolution for fixing the remuneration of auditors will be placed before

the shareholders for their approval.
REPORTS OF COMPTROLLER.& AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA:

Company has received ‘No review report’ on the accounts for the year ended 31st
March, 2015 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 619(4)
of the Companies Act, 1956. Copy is attached in Annexure - IV to this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

Loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013

form part of the notes to the financial statement.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the ordinary

course of business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. The Audit Committee granted

18



20.

21.

omnibus approval for the transactions and the same was reviewed by the Audit

Committee and the Board of Directors.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the

Financial year 2014-15 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with related parties are given in notes
to the financial statement. The details as required under Section 134 (3) (h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder in Form AOC-2 are given in
Annexure V to this report.

DEPOSITS

During the financial year 2014-15, the Company has not accepted any deposits

~ within the meaning of provisions of Chapter V — Acceptance of Deposits by

Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report are as

follows:

At the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 22.04.2015, it was decided to
continue with the process of merger of IFIN Commodities Limited and IFIN

Credit Limited, which are subsidiaries of IFCI Financial Services Limited.
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« IFIN Securities Finance Limited which is wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
has made provision of Rs. 696.57 lakh in the proﬁt and loss a/c for the quarter
ended June 30, 2015. This will also reflect in the Consolidated financial results of

the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2015.

e Ministry of Finance, Government of India, vide its letter dated April 7, 2015
informed IFCI Limited that the Government of India has acquired 6,00,00,000
Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company from certain Scheduled
Commercial Banks and has consequently increased its holding from present
47.93% to 51.04% of the Paid - up share capital of the Company. As a result,
IFCI Limited became a “Government Company” w.e.f. April 7, 2015 as per the
provisions of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. IFIN being a subsidiary
of IFCI Limited, it bas also become a “Government Company” as per the
provisions of Section 2(45) on the same day. Subsequently, a new Corporate
Identification Number (CIN) has been issued by the Registrar of Companies to
the Company which is U74899DL1995G01064034.

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO & EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company has taken measures to conserve energy by having energy efficient
air conditioners, blade servers, CFL lamps, LCD monitors etc. at its various
locations. As regards absorption of technology, your Company has installed
computer systems, software packages and other office equipments to increase its
organisational efficiency, maximise productivity and to gain competitive

advantage.

Your Company has neither incurred any expenditure nor earned any income in
foreign exchange.
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23.

24

Further, your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and
Development.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY.

The Company has formulated and put in place Risk Management and Surveillance
policy in order to mitigate risk related to the business of the Company. Surveillance
and risk monitoring of the client trading limit are very crucial part of trading
system. Effective surveillance can achieve investor protection, market integrity and
safe guard of securities market and trading member. The factors considered for
designing exposure policy include Client Margin, Approved Collateral Stocks,
Volatility of the market, Prevailing market pi;actice, etc. The Risk Management team
of the Company takes effective measures in order to protect the interest of the

Company and investors as per the policy of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Financial Control commensurate
with the size of the Company and nature of its business. The Company has
appointed M/s. IV Associates & Co as Internal Auditors to conduct the internal audit

functions and the activities of the Company.
The findings and recommendations of the Internal Auditors are reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Board on a periodical basis and necessary corrective actions

are being undertaken.

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism for its director(s)

and employee(s) to report to the management their concerns about unethical
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25.

26.

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct

or ethics policy.

The Company has installed necessary software(s) for maintainjng accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial

information.
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the
Company has established a vigil mechanism which is overseen through the Audit
Committee. Adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors

who express their concerns, forms part of the mechanism.

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee has denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the

year.

ANTI SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has in place Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

An internal Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of complaints and
that all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under

this policy.
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28.

During the year under review, the company has not received any compliant
pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
DIRECTORS '

Pursuant to the provisions of the Com;:;anies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of
Independeht Directors ‘was held without the attendance of 'non-independent
directors and members of managem_enf to review the performance of non-
independent directors, the Board as a whole and to review the Chairperson of the
company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive

directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors has reviewed
the performance of Board and its committees taking into consideration the

contributions made by the Directors/mempers of the Committee.

Subsequently, the Board hés made formal annual evaluation of its own
performance, and that of its committees and individual directors taking into
consideration the eva_luatipn criteria as set in the Nomination and Remuneration

Policy of the Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING

CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or

Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company.
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29. PERSONNEL

30.

The company has no employee in respect of whom the information required under
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Ménagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as

amended, is required to be given.

The Board further places on record its appreciation of the services of all the

employees of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Béard of Directors express their gfatitude for the co-operation, guidance and
support received from the IFCI Limited, Clients of the Company, Reserve Bank of
India, Cqmmercial Banks, Regulators, * Statutory Authorities, Securities and
Exchange Board of I_ndia, National Stock Exchange, Bombay Stock Exchange,
Metropolitan Stock Exchange' (formerly MCX-SX), NSDL, CDSL, LIC of India and
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. and its clients and other stakeholders 61"
the Company. |

By Order of the Board

IFCI Financial Services Limited

S USHA Rajesh Kumar Gupta
Managing. Director Director '
(DIN 03567757) (DIN 07188093)

- Place: Chennai
Date: 24.07.2015
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
' ' (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Sub

sidiaries

Annexure |

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amountsinRs.)

SL. No

Particulars.

Details

Details

‘Details

1.

Name of the
subsidiary

IFIN Securities
Finance Limited

IFIN Commodities
Limited

IFIN Credit Limited

2.

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different from
the holding
company’s
reporting period

Reporting Period
same as holding
company’s

~ as holding company’s

Reporting Period same

Reporting Period same
as holding company’s

Reporting
currency and
Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
relevant
Financial year in
the case of
foreign
subsidiaries

Nil

Nil

*Nil

>

Share capital

30,01,00,000

5,00,00,000

2,50,00,000

(%]

Reserves &
surplus

4,15,63,993

28,60,080

(40,89,730)

Total assets

70,87,48,774

10,75,44,258

2.20,91,899

Total Liabilities

70,87,48,774

10,75,44,258

2,20,91,899

Investments

3,01,939

Nil

Nil}

Turnover

9,88,72,380

2,03,76,750

17,92,075

S| e

Profit before
taxation

1,88,27,996

2,21,442

2,46,605

Provision for
taxation

'1,02,03,622

89,792

65,233

12.

Profit after
taxation

86,24,374

1,31,650

1,81,372

-13.

Proposed
Dividend

Nil |

Nil

Nil

|14, -

% of -
shareholding

100%

100%

100%
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Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil '
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

' Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section' 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures : :

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Nil
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by th(;, company on 'the year end | Not Applicable
No. - : Not Applicable
Amount of Invéstment in Associates/Joint Venture Not Applicable
‘Extend of Holding% ' ‘ | _ ' Not Applicable
Desqription of ._how there is significant influence ' Not Applicable
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable

- | Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Not Applicable -
| Sheet

Profit/Loss for the year Not Applicable
Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable
Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the
-year: Nil '

For IFCI Financial Services Limited

. &w\r
AV Pushparaj Ashwin Kumar R S USHA Rajesh Kumar Gupta
* Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Managing Director Director
(DIN 03567757) ~ (DIN 07188093)
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Annexure il

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN*

(OLD - U74899DL1995PLC064034)
(New - U74899DL1995G0I1064034)

2.| Registration Date

04/01/1995

3.| Name of the Company

IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

4,{ Category/Sub-category

of the Company*

Company Limited by shares/ Government Company

5.| Address of the
Registered office
contact details

IFCI Towers, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019 &
& Email: ashwinkumar@ifinltd.in, Telephone: 044 2830 6650

6. Whether listed No
company
7.1 Name, Address & Nil

contact details of

Agent, if any.

Registrar & Transfer

the

~II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

S. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the

No. | products / services Product/service | company

1 Security and commodity 6612 62.60%
contracts brokerage

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company
shall be stated:- :

Sl. | Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares Applicable
No. of the Company Subsidiary/ | held Section
lAssociate
1 [IFCI Lid (Old- Holding 94.78 Section 2 (87)
IFCI Towers, 61, NehrulL.74899DL1993PLC053677) & Section 2
Place, New Delhi — (New - (46)
110019 L74899DL1993G0I053677)
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2 [IFIN Securities Finance {(Old - Subsidiary 1100% Section 2 (87)
Limited U65991TN1989PLCO17792)
Continental Chambers, {(New-
142, 3" Floor, U65991TN1989G01017792)
Mahatma Gandhi Road,
Nungambakkam,
Chennai - 600 034
3. [IFIN Commodities (Old - . Subsidiary {100% Section 2 (87)
Limited U93000TN2009PLC070524)
Continental Chambers, |(New -
142, 3" Floor, U93000TN2009G0I1070524)
Mahatma Gandhi Road,
Nungambakkam,
Chennai - 600 034
4. {IFIN Credit Limited (Old - Subsidiary {100% Section 2 (87)
Continental Chambers, [U67190TN1995PLC032057)
142, 3 Floor, (New -
Mahatma Gandhi Road,|U67190TN1995G01032057)
Nungambakkam,
Chennai — 600 034

1V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding '

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year{As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As
on 31-March-2015}

% Change
during

the year
% of Total

Shares

% of Total
Shares

Demat | Physical Total Demat Physical | Total

A. Promoters

(1) Indian - - - - - - - - B

a) Individual/ HUF* 6 6 0.00 6 6 0.00

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - z _

c) State Govi(s) - - - - - - _ _ -

- 3,93,63,8 | 3,93, 94.78 3,93,63,8 | 3,93,6 94.78

d) Bodies Corp. 03 53:8f3) 03 | 3,803

€) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - _

f) Any other - - - - - - _ _ -

Total - 3,93,63,8 | 3,93, 94.78 3,93,63,8 | 3,93,6 94.78
shareholding of 03 | 63,380 03 | 3,803

Promoter (A)

B. Public - - - - - - N - N
Shareholding**

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govi(s) - - - - - - - - _

e) Venture Capital - - - - - - - - _
Funds

L
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year[As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As

on 31-March-2015]

f) Insurance
Companies

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total

Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total

Shares

% Change
during
the year

q) FlIs

h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

- | 2169900

5.22

2169900

5.22

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
-holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

¢) Others (specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D
R

Sub-total**
(B)(2):-

2169900

5.22

2169900

5.22

Total Public
Shareholding
(BY=(B)Y1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

4153370

9

4153
3709

100

415337

4153

09 | 3709

100

* beneficial interest are held by IFCI Limited

**Shares held by individuals other than promoter are shown in “B”, since they do not fall under
the category of “Promoter.”

29




B) Shareholding of Promoter-

a Shareholder's tSr?au'eholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year f’/o change
e year in
Name ’ shareholdin
No. of % of | %of No. of % of | %of g during
Shares total | Shares Shares total | Shares the year
Shares | Pledged / Shares | Pledged /
of the | encumbere of the | encumbere
compan | d to total compan | d to total
y shares y shares
1 | IFCI Limited 3,93,63,80 94.78 3,93,63,80 94.78 -
3 - 3 -
2 | Shri Satpal Arora 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited)
3 | shri Dileep Kumar 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Jain
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited)
4 | ShriBiranchi N 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Nayak
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited)
5 | ShriV. 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Satyavenkata Rao
(Nominee of IFCIL
Limited)
6 Shri Pawan Kumar 1 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
(Nominee of IFCIL
Limited)
7 | Smt Rashmi i 0.00 | - 1 0.00 | - -
Sachdev
(Nominee of IFCI
Limited)
Total 3,93,63,80 94.78 | - 3,93,63,80 94.78 | - -
9 9

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
company
1 At the beginning of the year 3,93,63,809 94.78 | 3,93,63,809 94.78
2 | Date wise Increase / Decrease in | - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):
3 At the end of the year 3,93,63,809 94.78 | 3,93,63,809 94.78
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
_(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

E)

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative
Shareholders beginning Shareholding during the
of the year year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year
- Smt. Chandra Ramesh 17,57,619 4.23 | 17,57,619 4.23
- Shri D.V. Ramesh 4,12,281 0.99 4,12,281 0.99
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):
3 At the end of the year
- Smt. Chandra Ramesh 17,57,619 423 | 17,57,619 4.23
- Shri D.V. Ramesh 4,12,281 0.99 4,12,281 0.99
Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN | Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the | Cumulative
and each Key Managerial beginning Shareholding during
Personnel of the year the year
No. of % of No. of % of
shares total shares” total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
1 | At the beginning of the year - - - -
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in | - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3 | At the end of the year - - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding

/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount -

ii) Interest due but not paid -

iii) Interest accrued but not due -

Total (i+ii+iii) -

Change in Indebtedness during | -

the financial year

* Addition -

* Reduction -
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VI.

excluding
deposits

Secured Loans

Unsecured

Deposit
Loans EPOSItS

Total
Indebtedness

Net Change ' -

Indebtedness at the end of the | -

financial year

i) Principal Amount -

i) Interest due but not paid -

i) Interest accrued but not due -

Total (i+ii+iii) -

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Amount in Rs)

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total
Amount

S. Usha (MD)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

21,63,514

21,63,514

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

5,03,331

5,03,331

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

26,66,845

26,66,845

Ceiling as per the Act (as per Schedule V
of the Companies Act, 2013)

42 Lakhs

B. Remuneration to other directors (Amount in Rs)

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

Shri M
\'
Muthu

ShriMP | ShriV
Rege Ramanan

Shri
Lalit
Patangia

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board 105000

committee meetings

105000 60000 43500

313500

Commission -

Others, please specify -

Total (1)

313500

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board -
committee meetings

Commission -
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SN. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

ShriM | ShriMP | sShriV Shri
v Rege Ramanan | Lalit
Muthu Patangia
Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (2) - - - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 105000 | 105000 60000 43500 313500
Total Managerial
Remuneration* Nil
Overall Ceiling as per the Act : (@1% of profits
calculated under
Section 198 of the
Companies Act,
2013)

*Excluding sitting fees under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN | Particulars of Remuneration : Key Managerial Personnel
CEO cs CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions - 7,70,970 | 7,66,301 15,37,271
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under | - - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,

1961
2 | Stock Option . - - - N
3 | Sweat Equity - - _ N

4 Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify... - - - -

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no Penalty / Punishment/ Compounding under Companies Act during
the year ended 31.03.2015.

For IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD

For IFCIFINANCIAL SERVICES LTD

S LR ol
Managing Director '

Diractor
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Annexure il

Annexure I1II

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

1. Background:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.1.

2.2,

The objective of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to ensure rationale and
objectivity in the remuneration of the Directors, Senior Management &

employees of the Company.

The Policy also intends to bring in a pragmatic methodology in screening of
candidates who may be recommended to the position of Directors and to
establish an effective evaluation criteria to evaluate the performance of every

Director and the overall Board of the Company.

The Policy also intends to prevent the Board of Directors degenerating into a

closed and narrow entity, in which incumbent members appoint their own kind.

The Policy also serves as a guiding principle to ensure good Corporate
Governance as well as to provide sustainability to the Board of Directors of the

Company.

. Framework

The requirement of formulating a Nomination and Remuneration ‘Policy stems
from the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force.

Any other Law, Statute as may be applicable for the time being in Force.



3. Objective

3.1. To identify suitable persons, interview them if necessary, and recommend them
as suitable candidates to fill up vacancies on the Board and Senior

Management.
3.2. To develop a policy to ensure the optimum composition of the Board of
Directors ensuring a mix of knowledge, experience and expertise from

diversified fields of knowledge i.e. Policy on Board Diversity.

3.3. The Policy also intends to add professionalism and objectivity in the process of

deciding Board membership.
3.4. To lay down criteria for the evaluation of the Board

3.5. To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a Policy thereon.

3.6. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors.

4, Eligibility criteria for recommending a candidate to be appointed on the
Board of Directors

‘The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) may consider the following
parameters while considering the credentials of potential candidates for Directorship in

the Company.
4.1. Educational qualification:

e Possess any Graduation/ Post Graduation/M.Phil/Doctorate

 Possess any other Professional Qualification/Degree/Diploma
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Such other qualification as the NRC may deem fit

4.2. Experience/Expertise

To possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of
finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate
governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the Company/’s
business.

The candidate should preferably have undergone requisite training programme
or mid - career Professional Development trainings which would have enabled

him/her to adapt to changing dynamics of business environment.

4.3. Disqualifications

The Candidate should not be of unsound mind.

The Candidate should not be an undischarged insolvent.

The Candidate must not have applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his
application must not be pending.

The Candidate must not have been convicted by a Court of any offence, whether
involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and sentenced in respect thereof to
imprisonment for not less than six (6) months.

There must not be any order passed by Court or Tribunal disqualifying a person
to be appointed as a Director.

There should not be any calls in respect of any shares of the Company held by
him, whether alone or jointly with others, and six months must not have elapsed
from the last date fixed for the payment of the call.

The Candidate must not have been convicted of the offence dealing with related
party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 at any time
during the last preceding five (5) years.

The Candidate must be in possession of his Director Identification Number (DIN).
The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of a Company which has not
filed Financial Statements or Annual Returns for any continuous three (3)

financial years.
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e The Candidate is not or has not been a Director of the Company which has failed

to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem any
debentures on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay any dividend
declared and such failure to pay or redeem continues for one year or more.

The Candidate should not have been found guilty of any offence consisting of
violation of Rules/ Regulations/ Legislative requirements by Customs/ Excise/

Income Tax Authority/ Foreign Exchange/ Other Revenue Authorities.

4.4. Other Eligibility Criteria

Each director must be an individual of high personal and professional integrity

and ethical character.

The candidate should have exhibited behavior that indicates he or she is .

committed to the highest ethical standards.

The candidate should not deprive the Company of any opportunity that belongs
to the Company.

He should not be in a position of diverting the corporate opportunity for own
benefits or to others, to the detriment of the Company.

The candidate must not at any time compete with the company in respect of any
business transaction.

Each director must possess the ability to exercise sound business judgment on a
broad range of issues.

The candidate has preferably had business, governmental, non-profit or

-professional experience at the Chairman, Chief Executive Ofiicer, Chief Operating

Officer or equivalent policy-making and operational level of a Iargé organization
that indicates that the candidate will be able to make a meaningful and
immediate contribution to the Board's discussion and decision-making on the
array of complex issues facing a large financial services business.

The candidate has achieved prominence in his or her business, governrnental or

professional activities, and has built a reputation that demonstrates the ability to
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make the kind of important and sensitive judgments that the Board is called
upon to make.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must be satisfied that the
candidate will effectively, consistently and appropriately take into account and
balance the legitimate interests and concerns of all of the company's
stockholders and other stakeholders in reaching decisions, rather than advancing
the interests of a particular constituency.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must satisfy itself that the
candidate will be able to devote suffioient time and energy to the performance of

his or her duties as a Director.

4.5. Criteria for independence — For Directors to be appointed as

Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

An independent director in relation to a company, means a director other than a
managing director or a whole-time director or a nominee director, -
(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses

relevant expertise and experience;

(b) (i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or

associate company;

(i) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding,

subsidiary or associate company;

(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two

immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

(d) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or
directors, amounting to two per cent or more of its gross turnover or total

income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed,
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whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or

during the current financial year;
(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been
employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any
of the three financial years immediately preceding the financialyear in which he

is proposed to be appointed;

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of thethree
financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed

to be appointed, of—

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the

company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per

cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm;

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the totalvoting

power of the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit
organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts from the
company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate

company or that holds two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the
company; or

(f) who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

Every independent director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he
participates as a director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every

financial year or whenever there is any change in the circumstances which may
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affect his status as an independent director, give a declaration that he meets the

criteria of independence as provided in sub-section

Explanation.—For the purposes of this section, "nominee director” means a
director nominated by any financial institution in pursuance of the provisions
of any law for the time being in force, or of any agreement, or appointed by

any Government, or any other person to represent its interests.

5. Remuneration Policy

1. Board Level Remuneration Structure

1. For Executive Directors (Managing Director and Whole-time Directors)

Remuneration will be paid as approved from time to time subject to the approval of the
Board and Shareholders as the case may be and as per the applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and under any other Act/ Rules/Regulations for the time being in

force.

2. In case of Non-Executive/Independent Directors

(i) Sitting Fees — As approved from time to time. The Sitting Fees may be revised by
the Board of Directors frorn time to time subject to the overall limits as prescribed
under the applicable provisions.

(if) Remuneration other than Sitting Fees - As approved from time to time.

I1. In case of Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees —

1. The pay structure of all Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees shall be

considered in accordance with qualification, experience and industrial standards.
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6. Monitoring and Evaluation

The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall evaluate the performance of the

Directors and the overall Board broadly on the basis of below mentioned criteria:

¢ Whether the Directors/Board have acted in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

e The Committee shall assemble all information regarding a candidate's
background and qualifications to determine if the candidate possesses or satisfies
the minimum skills and qualifications that a director must possess.

e The Committee shall evaluate a candidate's mix of skills and qualifications and
determine the contribution the candidate could be expected to make to the
overall functioning of the Board.

e The Committee shall give due consideration to the overall Board balance of
diversity of perspectives, backgrounds and experiences.

e With respect to current directors, the Committee shall consider past attendance
at meetings and assess the participation in and contributions to the activities of
the Board.

e Whether the Directors/Board have acted in good faith in order to promote the
objects of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in the
best interests of the Company, its employees, the shareholders, the Community
and for the protection of environment.

e Whether the Director/Board has exercised their duties with due and reasonable
care, skill and diligence and whether the Director/Board have exercised
independent judgment.

e Whether the Director/Board have involved in a situation in which he/they may
have a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the
interest of the Company.

e The Committee shall recommend director to the Board based on its assessment

of overall suitability to serve on the Board in accordance with this Policy.
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7. Board Diversity

e The Nomination and remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Board

comprises of Directors from diversified fields of Knowledge.

e The Board should have Directors who can add professionalism and objectivity in

the decision making process.
e The overall Board should reflect representatives from areas like finance, law,

accountancy, administration and other disciplines concerning the operational

interests of the Company at large.
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' 'ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IPCI
FINANCIAL SERVICRS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015,
The f;?ﬁpvamtiﬁn of eangelidated fnanelal statements of IPCI Fingnclal Services Limited,
for the year -ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with the financia) reporting framework
preseribed under the Companies Ac:t, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory audijter appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 139(5) read with seetion 129(4) of the Aot is responsible for expressing opinion on the
firancial statements under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards an auditing preseribed under section 143(10) of the Act.
This is stated 10 have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 08 June, 2015,

I, on behalf of the Comptrolisr and Auditor General.of India,have decided not-to copduct
supplemenraryj audit of the consolidated .ﬁnahciai statements of IFCI Financial Services Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and a5 suchk have no comments 1o make under section -
- H43(6)(b) read with section 129 (4) of the Act,

, Bar and an the boljaif of the
Comptrolier & Auditor Genergf of ludia

A (Supit¥aa V)
Principal Divector of Commercial Audjt
& Ex-officlo Member, Audit Board-11,
: : New Refhi

FlagoBelhi
Bate: 08,07.2013
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Coupinies Act, 2013 js the fesponsibility of the management of the company, The statulory
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For and on the hehalf of the
Comptroller & Aunditor General of India

{Supa th)
Principal Bircetor of Commerecinl Audit
& Ex-officin Member, Audit Board-¥},
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Place:Delhi
Date: 24.06.20 i5
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Annexure V

FORM NO.AOQC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third

proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil
b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nit
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction | Nil
including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or Nil
transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board Nil
g) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting Nil

as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction | Nif
including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board Nil
f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

For IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD  For IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LTO

\s
S . LA/V&Q Q/ﬂ’j}/
Managing Director Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ¢ REPORT (REVISED)

10
The members of IFCI Financial senices limited
Report on financial statements

Auditors’ Report dated April 30, 2015 is being revised to include the reporting on directions [ sub -
directions issued by the C&AG under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IFC financial services limited (‘the company”), which
comprises the balance sheet as at 34st March 2015, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management responsibility for the financial statements:

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of financial position,
“financial performance and cash flow of company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India. Including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting the frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of'appr_opriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing speciﬁed under section 143(10) of the Act.
* Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are

\
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appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ot AeTounting potices used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate t0 provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a. In the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2015;
b. Inthe case of the statement of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the year ended on that date; and
c. Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (‘the order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 Order

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

~a) Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company S0 far as
appears from our examination of those books.
¢) Asperthe information and explanations given to us, the company has branch offices only for marketing
purposes. The report and retums of branches are dealt with in our report. _ _
d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.
e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.
f) Inour opinion, there is no such observation which may have adverse effect on the functioning of the
company.
g) Onthe basis of written representation received from the directors as on 31 March 2015, taken on
' record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2015, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
h) Thereisno qualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and
other matters connected therewith.
i)  The company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.
j)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with rule 11 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given fo us:

\ -
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
" i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.
i) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.
3. As per directions/sub directions issued by the C&AG of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act
2013 vide letter no. MAB-II/CAD-1/6-2/2014-15/120 dated April 30, 2015, we report that:

Directions

1. The company has not been selected for disinvestment; he_ncé this clause is not applicable.
2. Cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/interest are given hereunder:
1. A sum of Rs.2.57 lacs has been waived on account of DP AMC during the FY 2014-15 in 415

cases pertaining to mostly dormant and inactive cliepts.

2. A sum of Rs.24.39 lacs has been written off during the FY 2014-15 in 5680 cases. Out of which
Rs.7.34 lacs in 2 cases has been written off on account of OTS and Rs.17.05 lacs has been
written off in 5678 cases pertaining to mostly dormant and inactive accounts.

3. - As this company is not dealing with any inventory, this clause regarding maintenance of records is not
applicable. No assets have been received as gift from government or other authorities by the company.
4. Detail of age wise analysis of pending legal/arbitration cases as follows:

Time limit No of cases Amount (in lakhs)
Up to two years 6 31247 I-

Upto three years 4 38.98 /-

More than three years 1 5/

Sub directions:

1. The company has a small piece of land at Mannur district in Thirunelveli, Tamil nadu, measuring 2.16
Acre on which a windmill of 800KW is erected. The company is having clear title deed for this land.
Except this land, the company has no other land.

HENNATL - 600 034.
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2. a) Confirmation of Bank balances are available, Trade receivable and trade payable consist of no of
clients and the procedure followed by the company is to send statement of account with request to
confirm or point out discrepancy, if any, within 8 days every month end/quarter end as per SEBI
compliance.

b) The company has not given any loan or advance.

3. The company has no deposits/ advances with Customs / Excise / Sales tax (VAT) and other authorities.

4. Necessary independent verification has been made of infomations/inputs furnished to Actuary, viz no of
employees, average salary, retirement age, and assumption made by actuary regarding discount rate,
future cost increase, mortality rate, etc., for arriving at the provision for liability of retirement medical

 benefits etc.,

5. There is no investmentin CGS/SGS/Bonds/Debentures.

7 For KALYANASUNDARAM & CO
Place: Chennai Chartered accountants
Dated: 29.05.15 _ FRN : 001676S

S =="

B.KALYANASUNDARAM
M.NO: 11453
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE ACCOUNTS OF IFCI FINACIAL SERVICES LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH31,2015

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The physical verification of fixed assets is being done by te company once in a year which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of business. During the year the assets have been
physically verified by the management and no major variation noticed on comparing with book.

ii) The Company does not have any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order,
are not applicable.
ifi) As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, Accordingly, provisions of
clause 4(iii) (a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable. '

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate in_ternal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of
Fixed Assets, purchase of securities, sale of securities and services. During the course of our audit, we have not
observed any major weaknesses in internal controls system. .

V) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framedthere under, wherever applicable. Therefore the
provisions of clause 4(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi) _ The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act for any of the services rendered by the company. '
vii) a) According to the information and explanations given o us and the records produced before us for verification,

the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth
tax, service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

¢) There is no amount required to be transferred to investor education and protection fund.

vii) As on 31t March 2015, the company has no accumulated loss. The company has not incurred cash loss during
the year, but there was cash loss during the immediately preceding financial year.

ix) The company has not availed any loans from banks/financial insitutions.

X) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not availed any term loans.

Xii) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to information and explanations given to us, we report that

no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

For KALYANASUNDARAM &CO
Place: Chennali Chartered accountants
Dated: 29.05.15 ERN : 001676S
e
. B.KALYANASUNDARAM

\/ M.NO: 11453
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IFCI Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

{Amount in Rs)

Note
particulars No. As at 31st March As at 31st March
2015 2014
1. JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1
1{Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2 415,337,090 415,337,090
(b} Reserves and surplus 3 296,490,407 299,061,994
2|Share application money pending allotment
3{Non-current liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,890,061 4,872,383
{b) Other Long term liabilities 4 7,169,459 6,553,211
(c) Long-term provisions - -
4l Current liabilities
(a) Shott-term borrowings -
(b) Trade payables 125,700,958 244,922,512
{¢) Other current liabilities 5 27,580,418 24,537,747
{d) Short-term provisions 6 2,978,951 981,932
TOTAL 878,147,344 996,266,869
Il. |ASSETS
1|Non-current assets
(8) Fixed assets 7
(i} Tangible assets 19,305,776 27,177,391
(i1} Intangible assets 2,262,087 6,140,303
(b} Non-currentinvestments 8 385,223,063 385,223,063
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) -
(d) Long term loans and advances 9 39,360,260 85,869,195
{e) Other non-current assets - -
2{Current assets
(a) Currentinvestments 10 17,689,062 19,031,314
(b) Trade receivables 11 107,744,654 154,907,534
(c) Cash and Bank balances 12 228,237,981 205,080,523
(d) Short term loans and advances 13 65,003,365 89,726,476
(¢) Other current assets 14 13,321,096 23,111,070
TOTAL 878,147,344 | 996,266,869 |

The Notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of Balance Sheet

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IECI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
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Achal Kumar Gupta
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S. Usha
Managing Director
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AAV Pushparaj
Chict Financial Offices

Place : Chennai

Date: 22/04/2015 { Company Sccretary



IFCI Financial Services Limited
Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March 2015

{Amount in Rs)

. Note| For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
. No. 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
" .[Revenue from operations 15 ) 167,462,31'57 1297619,815
It.|Other Operating Income 16 23,343,817 23,060,185
11.10ther income 17 31,553,452 38,535,963
1V.|Total Revenue {1 + Il + 1ii) 222,359,584 191,215,963
V.{Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 18 92,094,224 106,257,291
Finance costs 19 1,930,730 2,100,850
Depreciation and amortization expense 7 11,895,557 13,512,580
Other expenses 20 114,069,085 99,827,011
Bad Debts Written off - -
Total expenses (V) 219,989,596 221,697,732
vI.|Profit before bad & doubtful debts and tax (IV - V) 2,369,988 (30,481,769)
VIi.|Provision for bad & Doubtful debts 21 10,164,164 32,390,902
Exceptional ftems -Interest received (3,240,337)
VIIL.|Profit before extraordinary items and tax (VI - VIi) - (4,553,839) (62,872,671)
IX.|Extraordinary ltems
X.|Profit before tax (VI -Vil) (4,553,839) (62,872,671)
X1.{Tax expense:
- Income Tax
- Current Tax - MAT provided
- Current Tax - MAT Credit Entitlement
- Income Tax for Earlier Year -
- Deferred Tax Reversal {Net) (1,982,252)] 4,872,383
Xli|Profit (Loss) after tax (VI -IX) (2,571,587) (67,745,054)
Xill|Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic {0.06) (1.63)
(2) Dituted (0.06) {1.63)

The Notes 1 & 15 to 21 form an integral part of Statement of Profit and Loss
This is the Stalement of Profit and Loss referred Lo in our Reporl of even date
EOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Place : Chennai
Date: 22/04/2015
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015 :
(Amount in Rs)

Particulars o N o Year ended Year ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit befor tax (4,553,839) (62,872,671)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation on Fixed Assets 11,895,557 13,512,580
Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
Bad Debts Written Off - 2,222,935
Dividend Received {considered seperately under
investment Activities) (223,774) (559,561}
Finance Cost (considered seperately under Finance
Activities) 1,930,730 2,100,850
Interest income (17,404,852) (17,700,014}
Profit/(Loss) on Fixed Asset (3,802,339) (79,668) (452,881)
Operation Profit before Working Capital Changes (8,356,178) _{63,325,552)
Adjustments for: o o o :
(Increase) / Decrease in Current investments 1,342,251 2,411,438
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 47,162,879 93,307,411
{Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances 71,232,045 (52,626,653)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets 9,789,973 (4,247,028)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilites (116,178,883) 34,525,431
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 1,997,019 (1,183,530}
increase / (Decrease) in Non - Current Liabilities 616,181 15,961,465 (8,155,500} 64,031,'569
Cash Generated from Operation before tax 7,605,287 706,017
Direct taxes paid - -
Net cash from Operating Activities 7,605,287 706,017
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES T
Purchase of Fixed Assets (145,727) (1,700,625)
NDecrease in Capital advance ’ . -
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits v (18,276,797) (7,332,/81)
Dividend Received 723,771 559,564
Interest received 17,404,852 1/,/00,014
investment in subsidaries -
Sale of Fixed Assets 79,670
Net Cash used in / raised from [nvesting Activities o ' ' (793,'898) 9,305,842
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term Borrowing(net) -
Finance Cost (1,930,730) (2,100,850)
Repayment of Loans - -

(1,930,730) (2,100,850}
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalent (a+b+c) 4,880,659 7,911,010
Opening Cash and Cash Lquivalent . 45,988,818 38,077,808
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent 50,869,478 45,988,818
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent ' 4,880,660 o 7;911,0i0

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method” set out in Accouning Standard-3 on Cash Flow Satement issued
as per Company's Accounitng Standard Rules,2006.
This is the Cash Flow referred to our report of even date

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF

{FCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED Il
. ) e
S. Usha Achal Kumar Gupta

Managing Direclor

rR

SR
{ N e .
Place : Chennai Ashwin|Kum # AV Pushparaj
Date : 22/01/2015 Company Secretary Chiet Financial Officer
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note No. 1

A. Significant Accounting Policies:

I. The financial accounts have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in compliance with all material aspects, in accordance with

applicable Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act2013.

II.  Use of Estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are
.ment’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in
preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any differences of actual results to such

estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

II1. Revenue Recognition:

Broking Income
Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of the
transactions by the exchanges.

Interest Income
Interest eamed on fixed income bearing securities is accounted on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Loan Syndication Fees .

= Loan Syndication Fees are recognized when the right to receive the income is established.

Income from Depository Segment

»  Depository Services incomes are recognized on the basis of agreements entered into with
clients and when the right to receive the income 1s established.

Insurance Income

»  [nsurance Commission from Agency business is booked upon actual receipt of commission
{rom the principal.

Commission from marketing of Mutual Fund units and Bonds

¢ The Company is accounting for commission from marketing of mutual fund units and Bonds

on accrual basis. i

g
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IVv.

Equity Index/Stock — derivatives
*  Equity Index/Stock Futures are marked to market on daily basis. Debit or Credit Balances
disclosed under Current Assets or Current liabilities respectively represent the net amount
paid or received on the basis of movement of prices in the Index Stock Futures till the
Balance sheet date.
As at the Balance sheet date, the profit or loss on open positions are accounted for as
follows:
The unrealized profit determined Scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated profit. is
ignored and no credit is taken in the profit and loss account. The unrealized loss
determined Scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated loss, 1s recognized in the profit and
loss account.
On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for Equity Index/Stock Futures, the
profit or loss is calculated as difference between settlement/squaring-up price and
contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining ‘to the settled/squared-up
contract is recognized as profit or loss upon expiry/squaring-up of the contracts. When more
than one contract in respect of the relevant series of Equity Index/Stock Futures contract to
which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of the squaring-up of the
contract, the contract price of the contract so squared-up is determined using weighted
average method for calculating profit/loss on squaring up.
Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin, for entering into  contracts
for Equity Index/Stock Futures, which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of
underlying contracts, are disclosed under Current Assets.
Fee Income from Portfolio Management and advisory services
*  Fee income from Portfolio Management and advisory services is recognized on accrual basis.
Dividend Income
»  Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.
Income from sale of electricity
= Units generated from windmills are sold to the Tamil Nadu Electricity Board (TNEB) at
agreed rates and the income is included in the value of power generated {rom windmills.

Investments:

The Company acquires holds and deals in shares in ils own account also. The mvestments
intended to be held for one vear or more were classified as long-term investments and
provision for diminution in the value of long term investments being made only if such a
decline is other than temporary.

»  Current investments are considered as stock in made and are vidued at fower of cost or ney

realizable valuce. ;
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V. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

«  Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

» Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets are recognized if they are separately identifiable and the Company controls
the future economic benefits arising out of them. All other expenses on intangible items arc
charged to the profit and loss account.
The computer software is identified as Intangible assets and has been amortized at the rate of
40% following WDV method. »
The consideration paid as non-compete fees is identified as an Intangible Asset and has been
amortized as per the terms of the agreement on straight line basis.

= Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided on the written down value method at the rates and

in the manner prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013.

VI. Impairment of Assets:
»  An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the period/vear in which the
said asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognized in prior accounting

periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount

VII. Employee Benefits:
Employee benefits comprise both Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit plans. All
short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting
period based on services rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plan -
= The Company’s Provident Fund Scheme and Employee State insurance scheme are defined
contribution plan and company’s contribution paid/payable is recognized as expense in Profit
& Loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Defined Bencfit Plan -Gratuity
*  The Company’s liability towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The liability towards
Gratuity is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of Employee benefit entitlement. The gratuity
Scheme is operated through Group grawity Scheme of LIC. The gratuity liabilities are

provided based on Actuaiial Valuation certified by LIC. Actuarial gains and losses are

charged to Profit and TLoss Account
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= Compensated Absence-Leave Salary
The policy provides for an employee to be entitled to 24 days of earned leave per year and
maximum of 15 days leave standing to the credit of the employee at the end of the calendar
year will be paid as leave salary calculated on the basic pay along with January month salary
of the immediate next calendar year. The expenses on this account are recognized in the

profit and loss account.

VIII. Borrowing Costs:
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other Interest

and borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

IX. Taxation:
Income Tax expense comprises current tax as determined in accordance with the income tax laws
and deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effect of the tuming differences between
accounting income and taxable income for the year. The deferred tax charge or credit and the
corresponding deferred tax liability / assets are recognized applying the tax rates that have been

enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is a

reasonable certainty that such assets can be realized in future.

X. Provision , Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and 1t 1s
probable that there will be outflow of resources.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed without aking a provision in books when there is an
obligation that may, but probably will not require outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are not recognized/ disclosed financial statements.

B. Notes forming part of the Accounts

I.  Nature of Business:
The Company is a SEBI registered Stock Broker on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE),
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Multi Commodity Stock Exchange (MCX-SX) and primarily

engaged in the business of providing securities market related transaction services

3 /
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II.  Loans and advances include a sum of Rs. 59.23 lacs remitted to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
The remittance was made on account of trading in securities by certain clients resulting in sharp
fall in market value and consequently advised by the above exchange to remit to them under SEBI
guidelines. The company has sent legal notices to BSE in November 2013 for recovery of above
dues. The recovery of the above said loans and advances are subject to outcome of the decision of

appropriate authority. In the opinion of the management, the above amounts are good and

recoverable.

[II. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
(a) Bank guarantees aggregating to Rs.17,50,00,000 (Previous Year — Rs.15,00,00,000/-) to
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Rs.3,00,00,000/- (Previous Year -
2,00,00,000/-) to Bombay Stock Exchange and Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Previous Year -
1,00,00,000) to MCX Stock Exchange Limited as on 31% March 2015 for meeting margin

requirements.

(b) The Company has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs.12,75,00,000 /- (Previous

Year - Rs.15, 90, 91,706/-) with banks for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

(c) Counter guarantee given by the Parent Company (IFCI Limited) to a bank for issue of
bank guarantee to the subsidiary vcompany IFCI Financial Services Limited -

"Rs.30,00,00,000/- (previous year - Rs.30,00,00,000/-).

(d) Other Contingent liabilities — The Clients has lodged two cases against the company

which is pending as follows.

Forum before which the cases are | No. of | Amount ‘\

pending cases Rs. In |
| Lakhs)

NSE Arbitrator Tribunal, Chennai* i %_”_6.00 -

Additional City Civil & Sessions Judge, 1 127.45

Bangalore*®* I ___-J__,__._, o

() The Company has entered into an agreement to sell electricity to TNEB @ Rs.3.39 per unit,
The rate however is on a conditional basis subject to the outcome of the appeal petition of the
TNEB before the honorable ATE and, excess tanfl. if any, paid will be adjusted by TNEB

y
against the subsequent bills raised by the Company ) ) QJ
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IV. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and not provided for
(net of advances) is Rs. NIL (Previous Year —Nil)

V.  Managerial Remuneration:

Particulars ” o105 | 201314 |

To Whole Time Director ]
(a) Salary and Allowances - 15,383,788
(b) Contribution to PF and other funds - 1,19,032

To Managing Director

(On deputation from IFCI Limited)

(a) Salary and Allowances 24,95,2‘83—\7’ 1853417 |
(b) Contribution to PF and other funds 1,71,562 59,140 h{]
(¢ ) Gratuity - 49,126

Total 2666845 | 36,64.503

VL Earnings Per Share:
The Eaming per Share [EPS] has been computed in accordance with the Accounting Standard

20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The numerators and denominators

used to calculate the EPS are:

. j As on T*—— Asﬁo_xﬁl— T
Particulars 31-03-2015 31-03-2014 _‘I

Net Loss for the year available for the equity share

holders (Before extra-ordinary Item)

Norminal value per equity share

Weighted Average No. of outstanding equity shares

during ﬂ_]_e,, Zear — Basic & Diluted. B B 4>15)337709M,#,_]*,_ﬁ_ﬁ,yléﬁ-q’_aﬂ)f)..w_\
Basic & Diluted Eamings per Share (Before extra- i

i !

ordinary Item) (0.06) :[ (1.63) \

Net Loss for the year available for the equity share ) l “

holdcrstjL\ftcr extra-ordinary “:T) - (22,71,586) ‘ (QZLZ@LQ*E“ELJ}

Basic & Diluted Farnings per Share (After extra- t !

| a |

ordinary ltem) I (0.06) } (1.63) |

i
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VIIL Current and Deferred Taxation:

(a) No provision for current tax has been made due to losses.

(b)During the year the tax effect on timing difference has resulted in Deferred Tax Liability and

the same has been duly accounted as under:

Deferred Tax Asset / Liability

As on 31-03-2015 | As on 31-03-2014

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Deferred Tax Liability — Fixed
Assets (accumulated 28,90,061 48,72,383
-depreciation)

VIIL.  Details of Auditors Remuneration (Excluding Service Tax):

Nature of Service 2014-15 2013-14 4_!

Statutory Audit Fee 5,00,000 5,00,000

Consolidation Fee 75,000 75,000

For quarterly r:’:—};ning and

Consolidating financial

statements 2,40,000 1,80,000

Tax Audit 40,000 27,000 o

Other services 100,000 15,000 |
Total 9,55,000 7,97,000 a

IX. Disclosure as per AS-17 ‘Segmental Reporting’

Rs (in lakhs)

62
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;\/

Mutual
g . g : M . . Total
Brokerage Merchant Depository | Funds lqsurmce PMS Windmill ota
Banking income
External -Segment
Revenue 1,684.18 1.00 0642 181.54 29.05 48.10 2,010.36
(1,350.02) (21.44) (76.60) (70.30) (63.58) } (60.34) | (1,642.28)
Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Totz e 1 . .05 - ;
Total Revenue 168418 .00 66.42 181.54 29.05 48.10 2.010.30
(1,350.02) (21.44) (76.60) (70.30) (63.58) (60.34) | (1,642.28)
Segment Result 1270.53 1.00 64.29 41.84 29.05 - 4810 145481
(-
Qg
(1,087.37) (21.44) (73.49) 21.12) (63.58) {60.34) 1 (1,285.00)
Unallocated Corporate
Expenses net of income (1,706.80)

b
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(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (2,087.82)‘

Operating Profit - - - - - ) (251.99)
(-) (-) ) (-) () () () (802.72)

Interest Income 206.45 - - i i i 206.45
(197.83) i j ) j i i (177.00)

Net Profit before Tax - - - - - - (45.54)
(-) ) () () () (-) (-) (625.72)

Tax Expenses - - - ) ) )
(-) (-) () (-) () (-) () (-)

Net Protit after Tax - - - - . (45.54)
(-) -) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (625.72)

Segment Assets 4,337.90 278.32 183.06 - 27.93 3.06 161.78 4992.06
@s7570) | (gosy | WP | man| OV 06| @e3en | (520529

Unallocated Assets 3.789.42 - - - . i i 3,789.42
(5,134.24) i i j ) | (5,134.24)

Total Assets g12732| 2832 183.06 : 27931 306| 16178 | 878147
(1000995) | o) | W3] san | UV 306) | (26367) | (10339.53)

Brokerage MerchAant Depository [1\:1;5321 lnlsurance PMS Wiﬁdmill Total

- i Banking T - mcome I B
Segment Liabilities 144453 0.53 - . ) j 1,445.06
(2,139.02) (0.73) (2443) i i j "1 (2164.19)

Unallocated Lfifbiliti?,s» 7336.42 ] - - - B } T 7,33642
(8,175.34) ) ) ) ) (8,175.34)

Total Liabilities 8,780.94 L 0.53 | - o - - 8,781.47

i

L ostesn) | o7, MY L sy
Capital Expenditure - e - B 3 ’ l% I
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Non-cash expenses ; . - \ - ‘

other than Depreciation

()

X. Employee Benefits : .

(a)

(b)

(e)

Provisions for employee benefits under revised AS 15:
Defined Contribution plan: Provident and other statutory funds. The amount recognized as an

expense during the year is Rs.56,09,399 /-(Previous Year —Rs. 62,42,779). -

Defined Benefit plan: Liability on account of encashment of leave to employees is paid within
one vear from the end of the financial year. The expenses recognized in the profit and loss

account is Rs.52,25,066 /- (previous year Rs.24,70,730)

The Company has constituted The Employees Group Gratuity Fund under the Group Gratuily
Assurance Scheme administered by the Life lnsurance Corporation of India. The scheme
provides for Lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or
on termination of emplovment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for cach year of
completed service or part thereof in excess of 6 months subject to maximum of Rs 10,00,000.

Vesting occurs on completion of 5 years of service.

The following table sets out the Gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (revised).

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

T 301415 ] 201314 |

Not /—\vailtiig_ Not Av allailiw

DA IR

48 88, 596 Not Avadable

300,000 T 300, o<

Particulars

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Present value of the defined beneﬁt‘gbligations at the end

of the period

Liability recognized in the balance shem

“

_L____~__



: Particulars

 Average Month
i Average past Se

Gratuity cost for the year ended March 31 2015 (Amount in Rs)

. Year2014.15

605000538

_____ iR gehAT
B T 21 4 S
. Projected unit credit method

$58,49,732
$73,97,016.

- Actuarial As_s_ump}ibns o . :

. Mortality Rate . LIC(1994-96) ultimate

. Discount rate 1 8%

. Salary escalation rate 5%

: ”Withdra'wal rate . - Vvl %‘tv:o‘ 3% dépeﬁding on age
" Total Amount Payable N ‘ 64,035

Date of Valuation S 01/04/2015

(a)
(b)

()

(d)

Related Party Disclosure as per AS 18:

Holding Company : IFCI Limited

Subsidiary Companies : a) IFIN Commodities Limited
b) IFIN Credit Limited
¢) IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly
known as Narayan Sriram Investments Private
Limited)

Fellow Subsidiaries : a) IFCI Venture Capital Funds Timited
b) IFCI Factors Limited
¢) IFCI Infrastructure Development [imited
d) SHCIL
¢) MPCON

Key Management Personnel and relatives of such personnel:

Mr. Sunget Sukla - Managing Director (till 20.04.2014;

(On deputation from holding company PO fmed;
N /
i)l(l/

%

S
/
i
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Mrs. S. Usha

: Managing Director (since 21.04.2014)

(On deputation from holding company [FCI Limited)

(e) Transaction with Related Parties:

i j
o . —_ Key Key
Srr. Particulars H"“’“‘% /§ubsnd1my/ F?HOW Managerial Managerial
No. Subsidiary Companies Personnel Personnel
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
I | Rent Paid to IFCI Ltd. 1,378,436.00 1,41,65,795 - - '
Rent received from IFIN < < -
2 Commodities Ltd. 3,315,124 33,06,628 ]
3 ?rokerage Received from IFCI 90.69.477 35.13.958 . }
Ltd
4 Portfolio Management Services . R
tees received ) )
B 5 1 Depository Services 25.86,770 27,36,870 - -
: Reimbursement of Expenses to .
. ) 3 { 2 - -
6 [FCT Limited. 31,05,678 1,47,00,16 B
i Retmbursement of Exp
7 I received from [FIN - - - -
i . Commodities Limited D B ]
8 i Managerial Remuneration - - _ 26,66,845 36,64_,503
9 Consultancy Fee received from i ) . -
IFIN Commodities Limited ]
{o | Loan Availed from TFIN'| 0550 0 17,10,00,000 . -
i Securities Finance Limited ’
11 | Loan Repaid 46,200,000 17,10,00,000 - ! -
Corporate Guarantee [ssued to - ' c
2 00,000 - -
12 ! IFIN Commodities [td 3,00,00,000 3,00, " a
13 Interest Paid 64,466 465,176 - -
| Equity contribution made in
14 j IFIN Securities Finance - - - -
B Limited - _ i S
Is Equity contribution made in ) .
IFIN Commodity Limited -
16 Brokerage received from IFCI 160.265 194,643
Factors Lid ) e . - I N
[ Reimbursement of Expenses
17 from [FIN Securities Finance 1,00,00,000 99.98,995
i Limited I l -
: - - e B !
g F}'moum Duc- to IFIN Securities ) ] 2295117 | [
N Finance Limited b o S ORSUEER: S
¢ Reimbursement  of Lixpenses 1,440.000 i
i ? 4.,40.000
'"? | fiom IFIN Credit Limited e oL S R
%0 ‘ .f\'m(,.)unl Due from [FIN Credit $50.216 16.76.232
9 [nsm'zn’lcg . vm}" 'IFIN [ 55947 :
C Commedities Limited paad by ¢ '
\ /"
(’1“'\ A /&;\ . .Liy.
R ’
RN A
v ,_]
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-

22 | - 1,55,947

" TIFCL  Financial

T B

Services |
i Limited

' Payable bw_ IFIN Commodities

| Limited - -

XIL

XL

XTIV,

XVL

Foreign Exchange [nﬂoW and Outflow
During the year, the company has spent a sum of Rs.NIL. (Previous year-NIL) in foreign exchange,
towards travelling and conveyance.

Balances of Sundry Debtors confirmed on a regular basis from the respective parties. In the opinion

of the management, the balances are considered as good and recoverable except debtors for an

amount of Rs.13,49.24,578 (previous  year Rs.12, 66,53,094) which includes provision of
Rs.1.30,72,996/- towards Depository Services provided to M/s IFCI Limited.

The Company had initiated the process of identifying the vendors under Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, The Company is yet to receive intimation from the vendors
stating their status under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. In view of
this, the company has not made any provision and disclosure required by this Act.

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make them
comparable with the current year figures.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee. Figures in bracket represent previous year's .

figures.

o
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note no. 2 Share Capital

(Amount in Rs. )

As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Particulars ‘
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,000 | 50,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 | 50,00,00,000
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 41,533,709 | 41,53,37,090
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090
Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, not fully paid up - - -
Total 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 41,533,709 | 415,337,090
. Equity Shares March 2015 Equity Shares March 2014
Particulars T
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 41,533,709 | 415,337,090
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,533,709 | 415,337,090 41,533,709 | 415,337,090

3,93,63,809 Equity Shares (Previous year 3,93,63,809 equity shares

company and its nominees.

) are held by IFCI Limited, the holding

As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares| % of Holding No. of % of Holding
held Shares held
IFCl Limited and nominees 39,363,809 94.78 | 39,363,809 94.78
Ms. Chandra Ramesh 1,757,619 423 1,757,619 4.23
Mr. D V Ramesh 412,281 0.99 412,281 0.99

On O1st November 2011, 3,24,60,622 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were allotted to IFCI Ltd for

consideration other than cash on preferential basis by convertion of debt of Rs.76.25 Crore into equity

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share, i.e. equity shares having face value of
Rs.10/- per share entitled to one vote per share.




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note No. 3 Reserves and Surplus

{Amount in Rs. )

Particulars

A. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance

Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue

Closing Balance

B. Other Reserves (Specifiy the nature and purpose of

each reserve)

i)Amalgamation Reserve:
Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Ciosing Balance

ii) General Reserve:

Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

{-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

C. Surplus:

Opening balance

{+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year
(+) Transfer from Reserves

(-) Transfer to Reserves

Closing Balance

Total

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2015 2014
13,750,000 451,643,790
437,893,790
451,643,790 451,643,790
9,763,970 9,763,970
9,763,970 9,763,970 |
9,179,620 9,179,620
9,179,620 9,179,620

{171,525,386)

(103,780,332)

(2,571,587) (67,745,054)
(174,096,973) (171,525,386)
296,490,407 299,061,994

l

Note No.4 Other Long Term Liabilities

(Amount in Rs. )

cul As at 31st March | As at 31st March

Particulars 2015 2014
(a)Security Deposit and Sundry deposits 7,169,459 6,553,211
Total 7,169,459 6,553,211
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note No. 5 Other Current Liabilities

(Ah’lount inRs.)

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March 2015 | March 2014
Other payables
Creditors for expenses 6,047,448 3,602,836
Statutory dues 19,675,243 19,729,441
Other liabilities 1,857,727 1,205,470
Total 27,580,418 24,537,747
Note No. 6 Short Term Provisions (Amount in Rs. )
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March 2015 | March 2014
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Salary & Reimbursements - -
Contribution to PF and Statutory funds - -
Gratuity 300,000 300,000
Leave Encashment 2,678,951 681,932
Total 2,978,951 981,932
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IECI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 8 Non Current Investments

(Amount in Rs. )

particulars As at 31st As at 31st
reuiar March 2015 March 2014
Other Investments (Refer B below)
(b) Investment in Equity instruments 385,223,063 | 385,223,063
Total ' 385,223,063 | 385,223,063
Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of investments - -
Total 385,223,063 385_,_2237,963"
particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2015 March 2014
Ag'gregateér'n'bhnt of qucfea—-inves";cments N _ -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 385,223,063 | 385,223,063
., N/
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 9 Long Term Loans and Advances

{AmountinRs.)

Particulars

As at 31st
March 2015

As at 31st
March 2014

a. Capital Advances

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

b. Security Deposits

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good *
Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits

* tncludes Rs. 7,58,85,000 held with various stock
exchanges/clearing member for F&O segment.

¢. Loans and advances to related parties

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances

d. Other loans and advances (specify nature)
Other Loans & Advances

Advance Tax (net of provisions)

Doubtful

1,513,710

1,513,710

1,513,710

1,513,710

31,532,074

77,544,398

31,532,074

77,544,398

6,314,476

6,811,087

6,314,476

6,811,087

39,360,260

85,869,195

gpa
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IFCl FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 10 Current Investments

(Amount in Rs. )

Particulars' As at31st  |As at 31st March
March 2015 2014
(a) Investment in Equity instruments 34,772,801 36,661,737
(b) Investments in preference shares - -
Total (A) 34,772,801 36,661,737
Less : Provision for dimunition in the
value of Investments 17,083,739 17,630,423
Total 17,689,062 19,031,314
Particulars As at 31st  |As at 31st March
March 2015 2014
Aggregate amount of quoted 17,689,062 19,031,314
investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted - -
investments
Note 11 Trade receivable (Amount in Rs. )
] As at 31st  |As at 31st March
Particulars
March 2015 2014
Rs. Rs.
Trade receivables outstanding for a
|period less than six months from the
date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 77,786,885 32,346,521
Unsecured, considered good 10,237,647 82,234,563
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,005,068 79,539,579
89,029,600 194,120,663
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 1,005,068 .79,539,579
88,024,532 114,581,084
Trade receivables outstanding for a
period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 19,420,679 39,555,768
Unsecured, considered good 299,443 770,682
Unsecured, considered doubtful 133,919,510 47,113,515
153,639,632 87,439,965
Less: Provision for doubtful debts* 133,919,510 47,113,515
* Includes Rs. 1,30,72,996 receivables 19,720,122 40,326,450
Total 107,744,654 154,907,534
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 12 Cash and bank balances

{Amount in Rs. )

Particulars As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014

a. Balances with banks

in Current Accounts with Banks - 50,867,684 - 45,958,087

Fixed Deposit - 177,368,503 - 159,091,706

(Bank deposits with more than 12

months maturity) 69,540,117 B

b. Cheques, drafts on hand - - - -

¢. Cash on hand - 1,794 - 30,730
228,237,981 205,080,523

Note 13 Short term loans and advances

(Amount inRs.)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2015

As at 31st March 2014

a. Loans and advances to related
parties
Secured, considered good

908,635

Unsecured, considered good -
Doubtful - 1,849,225
908,635 1,849,225
b. Others
Other Loans and Advances 27,099,083 50,230,511
Advance Tax (net of provisions) 29,455,465 25,264,812
Sundry Deposits 3,628,068 9,753,069
Prepaid Expenses 3,912,114 2,628,859
Secured, considered good 64,094,730 87,877,251
64,094,730 87,877,251
65,003,365 ’ 89,726,476
Note 14 Other current assets
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2015 | March 2014
Interest accrued on Deposits 13,321,096 23,036,466
interest Receivable - 74,604
13,321,096 23,111,070




IECI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 15 Revenue from Operations

(Amount in Rs)

X For the year ended | For the Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Operating revenues:
Brokerage On Stock Broking 139,202,916 105,640,398
Commission On Mutual Fund
v 1,967,086 1,522,439
Insurance Commission 102,985 99,602
Loan Syndication Fee 100,000 1,864,000
Fees for Merchant Banking 160,000 280,000
Depository income 6,642,342 7,660,098
Commision From IPO / Bonds 16,027,387 5,507,671
Commision On Fixed deposits 2,802,144 6,258,670
Account Opening Charges 233,681 227,373
Dividend income 223,774 559,564
Total 167,462,315 129,619,815

Note 16 Other Operating Income

(Amount in Rs}

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the Year ended
31st March 2014

Sale of Power / Electricity 4,809,830 6,033,574

Delayed Payment Interest 18,533,987 16,376,611

others [consultance fee recd] - 650,000
Total 23,343,817 23,060,185 |

Note 17 Other Income

(Amount in Rs)

For the year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Rental Income 3,515,124 7,026,963
Miscellaneous income 10,223,500 12,227,901
Interest Income 17,404,852 17,700,014
Profit on Sale of Investments 409,976 1,581,085
Total 31,553,452 38,535,963
K2 Y4
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Note 18 Empoyee Benefits expense

(Amount in Rs)

. For the year ended | For the Year ended
Particulars
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
(a) Salaries and incentives 83,150,467 92,141,260
(b) Contributions to -
Provident fund & Employee State Insurance 5,609,399 6,242,779
Gratuity fund contributions 114,832 1,726,596
|{c) Staff welfare expenses 3,219,526 6,146,656
Total 92,094,224 106,257,291 |

Note 19 Finance Costs

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the Year ended
31st March 2014

Interest expenses 86,364 484,036
Bank Financial Charges 1,844,366 1,616,814
Total 1,930,730 2,100,850
\ 0y
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SCHEDULE: 20 OTHER EXPENSES

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the Year ended 31st
March 2015 March 2014
Fees To Clearing Member 1,744,955 1,614,787
Information Technology Exp 197,934 738,887
Data Feed Charges 1,493,837 1,659,994
Depository Participant Expenses 212,996 311,278
Broking Stamp Expenses 9,365 9,263
Turnover Based Fees - Sebi 674,539 48,985
Professional & Consultancy Charges 36,217,120 20,385,716
Transaction Charges 1,205,787 928,281
Vsat Charges 19,101 20,674
Advertisement 195,111 9,107
Audit Fees 695,000 950,864
Electricity Charges 4,477,762 4,379,270
Insurance Expenses 1,093,114 1,390,056
Commission Paid 13,970,823 9,141,985
Miscellaneous Expenses . 2,557,516 2,238,167
Postage & Telegram 1,288,141 1,317,840
Printing & Stationery 1,554,175 1,482,289
Rent 27,315,764 29,241,513
Rates & Taxes 543,835 931,753
Repairs & Maintenance 1,065,868 3,919,447
Sitting Fees 333,000 246,000
Membership Fee And Subscription 4,693,176 2,190,173
Telephone Expenses 6,652,157 7,399,252
Training Expenses 111,063 163,773
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1,634,027 3,633,039
Office Maintenance 3,842,277 4,558,254
Business Development Expenses 270,642 294,931
Contbn to sale of assets - 621,432
TOTAL L 114,069,085 99,827,011
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LHVIITED
Note: 21 Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts {Amount in Rs)
: For the year ended 31st | For the Year ended 31st
Particulars
Viarch 2015 March 2014
Diminution in the value of shares (Net) - 934,585
Bad Debts Written off 2,439,364 | 2,222,935
Reversal of Mar 14 Dimn provn (546,685) o
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Adv 29,233,382
8,271,485
10,164,164 32,390,902
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of IFCI Financial Services Limited (Revised)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/S IFCI Financial
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), comprising of the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2015, the consolidated statement of profit and loss,
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the stgnificant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the congolidated
financial statements™).

Management’s responsibility for the Consclidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated  financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hercinafter referred to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give 2 true and fair view and are free from material
‘misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Director of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

18, 1013 No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkars, CHENNAI - 560 034.
Phone - 04d - 2817 2873, 2817 5393, E-mail : bks_chennai@dataone.in : kau_krish@yahos.co.in
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Auditor’s responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or ermor. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Dpivion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India

(i)  in the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group, as at March 31, 2013, '

(i) in the case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the consolidated profits for
the year then ended on that date;

{iii) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows for the
vear ended on that date.

& (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkam, CHENNAI - 600 034.
P}zcme {}4»; 2817 2873, 2817 5393, E-mail : bks_chennai@dataone.in | kau_ krish(@yahoo.co.in
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Report on other legal ;md regulatory requirements

1.

8

As required by the Companies (Audifor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order"), issued by the
Ceniral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on
the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of ocur audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid  consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

{¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. '

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014.

{e) On the basis of the relevant assertion contained in the audit reports on standajone financial
statement of the Holding Company and each Subsidiary Company which are incorporated in
India, none of the directors of any such company is disqualified as at March 31, 2015 from
being appointed as a director in terms of sub section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

(f) With,respect to the other maitters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i There were no pending l.itigaﬁons which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group, excepting the following remarks in the case of subsidiary
M/s IFIN Securities Finance Limited:

“The pending litigations with M/S Zylog group
would impact company’s financial position”.

ii The Group did not have any material foresceable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

i There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund .by the Holding Company, and jits subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. R

18, (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkam, CHENNAT - 600 034.
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3

3. As per directions/sub directions issued by the C&AG of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 vide letter no. MAB-IVCAD-1/6-2/2014-13/120 dated April 30, 20135, we
report that:

Directions

t. The company has not been selected for disinvestment; hence this clause is not
applicable. '
2. Cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/interest are given hereunder:
a. In IFCI Financial Services Limited a sum of Rs.2.57 lacs has been waived on
account of DP AMC during the FY 2014-15 in 415 cases pertaining to mostly
dormant and inactive clients.

b. In IFCI Financial Services Limited a sum of Rs.24.39 lacs has been written off
during the FY 2014-15 in 5680 cases. Qut of which Rs.7.34 lacs in 2 cases has
been written off on account of OTS and Rs.17.05 lacs has been written off in 5678
cases pertaining to mostly dormant and inactive accounts.

¢. In IFIN Securities Finance Limited a sum of Rs.89.11 lacs has been written off
during the FY 2014-15 in 2 cases on account of OTS.

9

As this company is not dealing with any inventory, this clause regarding maintenance of
records is not applicable. No assets have been received as gift from government or other
authorities by the company.

4. Detail of age wise analysis of pending legal/arbitration cases as follows:

Tinie limit No of cases Amount (in lakhs}
Upto ] year 6 10.24
1102 years 10 1699.6
2 10 3 years 17 639.57
Sub directions:

1. The company has a small piece of land at Mannur district in Thirunelveli, Tamil nadu,
measuring 2.16 Acre on which a windmill of 800KW is erected. The company is having
clear title deed for this land. Except this land, the company has no other land.

S g

a} Confirmation of Bank balances are available, Trade receivable and trade payable
consist of no of clients and the procedure followed by the company is to send staiernent
of account with a request to confirm or point out discrepancy, if any, within 8 days every
month end/quarter end as per SEBI compliance.

b) The company has given loans and advances for which third party confirmations is

available for amounts related to deposit with Exchanges on account of Margin Money
and l.oan Against Shares/ Margin funding.

18, (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkam, CHENNAI - 600 034.
Phone : 044 - 2817 2873, 2817 5393. E-mail : bks_chennai@dataone.in | kau_krish@yvehoo.co.in
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3. The company has no deposits/ advances with Customs / Excise / Sales tax (VAT) and
other authorities.

4. Necessary independent verification has been made of information’sfinputs furnished to

Actuary, viz no of employees, average salary, retirement age, and assumption made by

actuary regarding discount rate, future cost increase, mortality rate, etc., for arriving at

the provision for liability of retirement medical benefits etc,,

There is no investment in CGS/SGS/Bonds/Debentures.

W

for KALY ANASUNDARAM & CO.
Chartered Accountants
firm Reg. No. 003&763{,5,”_..

B. KALY ANASUNDARAM
parinet, MMNO. 11453

Date: 08.06.2015
Place: Chennai

1& (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Avea, Nungambakkam, CHENNAI - 600 {):3 4, A
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Annexure to the independent Auditors’ report to the members of IFCI Finance fimited for the year
ended March 31, 2015,

As stated in Para 1 of ‘Other legal and regulatory requirements’ in our Auditors’ report of even date,
the following statement is based on the comments in the auditors’ reports on the standalone financial
statements of the holding company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

{1

(i

(i)

(iv)

)

- {vi}

(a) The holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets,

{b) The holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have a regular
programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are
verified every year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Group and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India are Service
companies. Accordingly it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus paragraph 3(ii) of the
order is not applicable. )

As per the information and explanations given to us, IFIN Securities Finance Limited
has given loan to the holding company IFCI Financial Services Limited during the vear.

The loan has been repaid by IFCI Financial Services Limited during the year itself with
interest,

In their opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the holding company and
its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the nature of their business with regard to
purchase of fixed assets, purchase of securities, sale of securities and services. During the
course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in internal controls system.

The holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not accepted
any deposits during the year.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services rendered by the holding
company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in india.

{vi)) (&) According to the information and explanations given to us and the reuords produced before

us for verification, the group is regular in depositing undxsputcd statug

18, (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkam, CHENNAL - 600 034. '
Phone : 044 - 2817 2873, 2817 5393 E-mail - bks_chennai@dataone.in ; kau_krish@yahoo.co.in
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provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty
of exercise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues with appropriate authorities.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the group has no dues of
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service fax, duty of customs, duty of exercise, value added
fax, cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(¢} The group has no amount required to be transferred to investor education and protection
fund.

(vii) As on 31" March 2015, the holding company IFCI Fipancial Services Limited, has
accumulated losses at the end of the financial year which does not exceed 50% of iis net
worth. ‘

The holding company has not incurred cash loss on standalone basis during the year but has
incurred cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year.

The subsidiary company M/S IFIN Credit Limited has accumulated losses at the end of the
financial vear and in the immediately preceding financial year on standalone basis which is
less than 50% of its net worth. :

M/S IFIN Credit Limited has not incurred cash loss during the financial year nor in the earlier
financial year.

The other subsidiary companies in the group do not have either accumulated losses or
incurred cash loss at the end of the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial
year on standalone basis,

{(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, only the subsidiary company in
the group viz. M/S IFIN Securities Finance Limited has availed revolving Hne credit from
financtal institutions, The subsidiary company has not defaulted in repayment of their
respective dues to the financial institutions. ’

Neither the holding company nor the other subsidiary companies in the group have any loan
from bank or financial institutions. '

{x) According to the information and explanations given to us, none of the companies in the
group have given any guarantee for loan taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

18. (Old No. 22), 2nd Cross Street, Lake Area, Nungambakkam, CHENNAL - 600 034.
Phone - 044 - 3817 2873, 2817 5393, E-madl - bks_chennai@dataone.in ; kau_krish@yahoo.co.in
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| KALYANASUNDARAM & Co.,
€% | CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, none of the companies in the
group have availed any term loans.

{xil)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by any of the
companies in the group have been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

Date: 08.06.2015
Place: Ch i
face canat For KALYANASUNDARAM & CO.,
Charlered Accouniants
Firm Reg. No. 0016745

B. KALYANA$UND&RAM
Pariner, M.No. 11453

18 (Old No. 22), Znd Cross Street, Loke Area, Nungambakiam, CHENNAL - 800 034,
Phone - 044 - 2817 2873, 2817 5393 E-mail : bks_chennai@dataone.in | kau_krish@pahoo.co.in
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IECI Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

{Amount in Rs)

. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars I;J\::)t.e 2015 2014
1. |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1{Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2 415,337,090 415,337,090
{b) Reserves and surplus 3 324,330,120 317,964,311
2|share application money pending allotment - -
3|Non-current liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2,923,123 5,031,486
(b) Other Long term liabilities 4 7,169,459 6,553,211
{c) Long-term provisions - -
4|Current liabilities
{a) Short-term borrowings 5 313,000,000 329,833,777
(b) Trade payables 156,252,175 275,845,468
{c) Other current liabilities 6 58,672,640 46,337,461
(d) Short-term provisions 7 51,126,997 38,960,835
TOTAL 1,328,811,604 1,435,863,639
H.IASSETS
1[Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 8
(i} Tangible assets 19,642,029 27,653,058
(i) Intangible assets 2,575,372 6,488,395
(ili) Goodwill 2,253,857 2,253,857
(b) Non-current investments 9 - -
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) - 126,041
{c) Llong-term loans and advances 10 388,443,154 169,911,295
(d) Other non-current assets - -
2|{Current assets -
(a) Currentinvestments 11 13,365,577 21,379,898
(b) Trade receivables 12 108,104,989 154,935,028
(c) Cash and Bank baiances 13 314,099,766 291,854,884
(d) Short-term loans and advances 14 462,384,678 734,142,382
(e) Other current assets i5 17,942,182 27,118,801
TOTAL 1,328,811,604 1,435,863,639

The Notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of consolidated Balance Sheet

This is the consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Sor M / P
S. Usha Alchal Kumar Gupta
8. KALY ANASUNDARA R Managing Director Director

Pariner, MNo, 11453

Sl {/{ S j ’ )f,:fg‘ \
Ashwin Kumar R “ AV Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai

Date: 22/04/2015 Company Secretary
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IFCI Financial Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the Year ended 31st March 2015

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars Note | Forthe year ended | For the year ended
No. 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
1.|Revenue from operations 16 281,339,911 245,350,242
il.{Other Operating Income 17 23,343,817 7,074,324
111.|Other Income 18 38,717,061 44,759,997
IV.|Total Revenue (1 + Il + 1) 343,400,789 | 297,184,563
V.|Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 19 106,370,820 123,180,038
Finance costs 20 45,082,002 33,526,456
Depreciation and amortization expense 8 12,069,782 13,959,327
Other expenses 21 137,755,450 113,131,704
Bad Debts Written off 8,911,192 -
Total expenses (V) 310,189,246 283,797,525
Vi. {Profit before bad & doubtful debts and tax (IV - V) 33,211,543 13,387,038
VII.|Provision for bad & Doubtful debts 22 21,385,675 59,003,950
Exceptional ltems -Interest received (3,240,337) -
ViIl.|Profit before extraordinary items and tax (VI - VIi) 15,066,205 | - (45,616,912)
IX.{Extraordinary ltems
X1.|Profit before tax (VI -ViI) 15,066,205 (45,616,912)
Xii.{Tax expense: '
- Current Tax 10,358,647 14,743,278
- Current Tax - MAT Credit Entitlement - (5,132)
- Deferred Tax Charge (Net) (1,982,252)} 4,905,445
XIil. |Profit (Loss) after tax (Vill -IX) . 6,689,810 |* (65,260,503)
XIV.|Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
xv | Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) - -
XVI.|Profit (Loss) for the period (X!l + XV) 6,689,810 {65,260,503)

The notes 1 & 16 to 22 form an integral part of consolidated Statementof profit and loss
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss referred to in our Report of even date

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Place: Chennai
Date: 22/04/2015

S. Usha
Managing Director

Ashwih Kumar R
Company Secretary

g1

)
] J?{ A - e
Achal Kumar Gupta

Director

,y"/ \.\
AV Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)
CONSOLIDATED CASH {LOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015

{Amount in Rs)

CONSOLIDATED
Particutars YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
A
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit befor tax and exceptional itesm as per 15,066,205 (45,616,913)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation on Fixed Assets 12,069,782 13,959,327
Provision for Doubtful Debts (2,113,928) 29,498,374
Diminution in Value of Stock (1,397,178) (1,936,710}
Bad Debts Written Off (546,685) 2,222,935
Dividend Received {considered seperately under
Investment Activities) (310,164) (818,409)
Finance Cost (considered seperately under Finance
Activities) 45,082,002 33,526,456
Interest income (21,973,820) (23,617,104)
Profit/(Loss) on Fixed Asset - 30,810,009 (29.668) 52,805,201
A
Operation Profit before Working Capital Changes 45,876,214 7,188,288
Adjustments for:
{Increase) / Decrease in Current investments 8,014,321 11,360,391
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 46,830,040 66,178,154
(Increase) / Decrease in Short term Loans &
Advances 271,757,704 25,620,789
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 9,176,618 (6,738,722)
{increase} / Decrease in Long term loans & Advances (218,531,859) (71,640,993)
Increase / {Decrease) in other Liabilites 12,335,179 (11,298,387)
Increase / {Decrease) in Short term Borrowings (17,858,710) (50,784,110}
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payable {119,593,289) 29,743,587
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 12,166,162 36,426,194
Increase / (Decrease) in Non - Current Liabilities 616,248 (8,155,500}
4,912,413 20,711,403
Cash Generated from Operation before tax 50,788,628 27,899,692
Direct taxes paid (5,600,000} {2,000,000)
Net cash from Operating Activities 45,188,628 25,899,692
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (145,727) (1,747,320)
(Increase) / Decrease in Non Current Investment - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits (18,300,704) (8,289,459)
Dividend Received 310,164 818,409
Interest received 21,973,820 23,617,104
Sale of Fixed Assets 79,670
Net Cash used in / raised from Investing Activities 3,837,553 14,478,404
C [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Received -
Short term Borrowing{net) - -
Finance Cost (45,082,002) (33,526,456)
(45,082,002) (33,526,456)
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalent (a+b+c) 3,944,178 6,851,640
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent 67,320,025 60,468,385
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent 71,264,203 67,320,025
Increase / {Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,944,178 6,851,640

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” set out in accounting standard -3 on cash flow

statement issued as per company

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

accounting standard rules 2006
This is the cash flow referred to our report of even date

(s

PACC - e
o (e e S NS
S. Usha Achal Kumar Gupta

Managing Director Director

R. AsHwin Kufnar AV'Pushparaj
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai

Date: 22/04/2015 Company Secratary
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IFCI Financial Services Limited (Consolidated)
Note No.1

A. Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts for the year ended March, 31 2015

I.  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements: .
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India / accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent applicable) and
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

II. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principies requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the
estimates and assumptions used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. Any differences of actual results to such estimates are recognized in the period in
which the results are known / materialized.

III.  Principles and assumptions used for consolidated financial statements and pro-forma adjustments

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared applying the principles laid in the
Accounting Standard (AS) 21 Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India as considered appropriate for the purposes of these
Consolidated Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss Account, together referred to in as
'Consolidated Financial Statements'. Following are the companies whose accounts have been

- considered for the consolidated financial statements.

IFCI Financial Services Ltd’s (the parent company or the holding company) shareholding in the

following companies as on 31% March 2015 and 31™ March 2014 are as under:
g p

-~
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As on 31st March As on 31st March
Country 2015 2014
Name of the subsidiary Date on whici.l became a No of % of No of % of
subsidiary sl;lae;'gs holding | shares held | holding
IFIN Commodities Ltd. India 30.01.2009 50,00,000 100 50,00,000 100
IFIN Credit Ltd. India 01.02.2010 25,00,000 | 100 25,00,000 100
IFIN Securities Finance
Ltd. (Formerly knownas |y 4, | 02032011 | 30,01,000 | 100 | 30,01,000 | 100
Narayan Sriram
Investments Private Ltd)
Iv. Principles used in preparing Consolidated Financial statements:

a) In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the parent and its
subsidiaries is combined on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses.
b) Intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparation of consolidated financial statements

¢) The cost to the parent of its investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity
of each subsidiary, at the date on which investment in each subsidiary is made, is eliminated.
(i) In the case of IFIN Commodity Ltd., since the amount paid is equal to the paid up capital of

the subsidiary, there is neither goodwill nor a capital reserve.

(ii) In the case of IFIN Credit Ltd., IFCI Financial Services Ltd. had acquired the 100% of the
share capital in two stages i.e. initially 45% in the accounting year 2008-09 and the balance in
2009-10. The total amount paid is Rs.2,79, 00,000 for a net asset value of Rs. 1, 98, 81,335/-
as on 01.02.2010 i.e., the date on which the Company became a subsidiary (Wholly owned).
The surplus of Rs.80, 18,665/~ is adjusted against the Amalgamation Reserve of Rs.97,
63,970/- leaving a balance of Rs.17,45,305/-.

(iii) In the case of IFIN Securities Finance Ltd (Formerly known as Narayan Sriram
Investments Private Ltd.), [FCI Financial Services Ltd. had acquired the 100% of the share
capital for a consideration of Rs. 73,23,063 for a total equity of Rs.1,00,000/- as on 02.03.2011
i.c.. the date on which the Company became a subsidiary (Wholly owned). The total reserves
and surplus as on date of acquisition of Rs.50, 69,206/~ and the balance amount of Rs. 22,

53,857 is shown as goodwill. \ V
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V.

Revenue Recognition:

Broking Income

Brokerage Income is recognized on the trade date of the transaction upon confirmation of the

transactions by the exchanges.
Interest Income from Fixed Deposits

Interest earned on fixed income bearing securities is accounted on a time proportion basis

taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Loan Syndication Fees'_

Loan Syndication Fees are recognised when the right to receive the income is established.
Income from Depository Segment

Depository Services incomes are recognised on the basis of agreements entered into with

clients and when the right to receive the income is established.

Insurance Income

Insurance Commission from Agency business is booked upon actual receipt of commission
from the principal.

Commission from selling of Mutual Fund

Commission from selling of mutual funds is accounted on accrual basis.

Interest Income from Loans disbursed

Interest earned on Loan is accounted on accrual basis. In terms of the RBI Directions,
interest income on Non-performing assets ("NPAs") is recognised only when it is actually
realised.

Processing Fee:

Processing Fee received in respect of loans is accounted for in the year in which the loan is

disbursed

* Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
Equity Index/Stock — derivatives
Equity Index/Stock/Commodity Futures are marked to market on daily basis. Debit or Credit

Balances disclosed under Current Assets or Current liabilities respectively represent the net

/
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VI

amount paid or received on the basis of movement of prices in the Index Stock Futures till the

Balance sheet date.

(a) As at the Balance sheet date, the profit or loss on open positions are accounted for as

follows:

The unrealized profit determined scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated profit, is ignored

and no credit is taken in the profit and loss account.

The unrealized loss determined scrip wise/Index wise, being anticipated loss, is recognized

in the profit and loss account.

(b)On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts, the profit or loss is calculated as difference

between settlement/squaring-up price and contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit
balance pertaining to the settled/squared-up contract is recognized as ' profit or loss
upon expiry/squaring-up of the contracts. When  more than one contract in
respect of the relevant series of Equity Index/Stock / Commodity Futures contract to
which the squared-up contract pertains is ~ outstanding at the time of the squaring-up of
the contract, the contract price of the contract so squared-up is determined using weighted

average method  for calculating profit/loss on squaring up.

(c)Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin, for entering into contracts

which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed

under Current Assets.

Fee Income from Portfolio Management and advisory services
Fee income from Portfolio Management and advisory services is recognized on accrual basis.

Income from sale of electricity
Units generated from windmills are sold to the Tamil Nadu Electricity Board (TNEB) at agreed

rates and the income is included in the value of power generated from windmills.

Stock-in-trade:
Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and quoted value, computed category Wisc. Cost 13

ascertained on FIFO basis. Provision is made for diminution arising there from.

s & ;
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IX.

Investments:

»  The Company acquires holds and deals in shares in its own account also. The investments
intended to be held for one year or more were classified as long-term investments and
provision for diminution in the value of long term investments being made only if such a
decline is other than temporary.

Current investments are considered as stock in trade and are valued at lower of cost or net

realizable value.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognized if they are separately identifiable and the Company controls the
future economic benefits arising out of them. All other expenses on intangible items are

charged to the profit and loss account.

The computer software is identified as Intangible assets and has been amortized at the rate 40%
following WDV method. The consideration paid as non-compete fees is identified as an

Intangible Asset and has been amortised as per the terms of the agreement on straight line basis.

Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided on the written down value method in the manner

prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the period/year in which the said
asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is

reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

X. FEmployee Benefits:

Employee benefits comprise both Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit plans. All

short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period
Y
Se > 1o ‘;_r‘\"».,t;)‘,/ o >
_,_»i. .‘%\) L‘F \a‘ifaf
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i

based on services rendered by employees.
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XL

XIL.

Defined contribution plan -

The Company’s Provident Fund Scheme and Employee State insurance scheme are defined
contribution pian and company’s contribution paid/payable is recognized as expense in
Profit & Loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Defined Benefit Plan -Gratuity

The Company’s liability towards Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The liability towards
Gratuity is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each

period of service as giving rise to additional unit of Employee benefit entitlement. The

gratuity Scheme is operated through Group gratuity Scheme of LIC. The gratuity liabilities

are provided based on Actuarial Valuation certified by LIC. Actuarial gains and losses are
charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Compensated Absence-Leave Salary

" The policy provides for that an employee is entitled to 24 days of earned leave per year and

s : [ ~ o ~ a nalandae
maximum of 15 days leave standing to the credit of the employee at the end of the calendar

year will be paid as leave salary calculated on the basic pay along with January month

salary of the immediate next calendar year. The expenses on account thus arising are

recognized in the profit and loss account.

Borrowing Cost:

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized. ~ Other

Interest and borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Taxation:

Income Tax expense comprises current tax as determined in accordance with the income tax laws
and deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effect of the timing differences between
accounting income and taxable income for the year. The deferred tax charge or credit and the
corresponding deferred tax liability / assets are recognized applying the tax rates that have been
enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is a

reasonable certainty that such assets can be realized in future. \ N/

m}?_ﬁ&,
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B. Notes forming part of the Accounts

i.

IL.

I1I.

Nature of Busihess:
The Parent Company is a SEBI registered Stock Broker on National Stock Exchange of India
Ltd (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) is primarily engaged in the business of providing

securities market related transaction services.

The subsidiary company IFIN Commodity Limited is a registered member of Multi Commodity
Exchange Limited and its primarily engaged in the business of providing Commodity Market

related transaction services.

The subsidiary company IFIN Securities Finance Limited is a Non Banking Finance Company,
registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, is primarily engaged in the business of

margin funding, providing loan against shares & property, Promoter funding, etc.

“The subsidiary company IFIN Credit Limited is engaged primarily in the business of extending

credit facilities to customers and in investing activities.

The holding company IFICI Financial Services Limited in its Board meeting held on 11th
November 2013 has passed a resolution and approved for merger of its subsidiary IFIN Credit
limited with another subsidiary IFIN Commodities Limited as part of its strategies towards
business consolidation. Accordingly the company in its Board meeting dated 23rd January 2014
has approved the merger with [FIN Commodities Limited. Thereafter in view of the impending
stake sale process of IFCI Financial Services Ltd initiated by IFCI Ltd, the board at its meeting
held on 18" January 2014 decided to put on hold the merger process for the time being. As
stake sale has not materialized during FY 2014-15, the proposal is again taken to the board at its

meeting to be held on 22.04.2015 for board’s approval.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
Bank guarantees aggregating to Rs.17,50,00,000 (Previous Year - Rs.15,00,00,000/-) to
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Rs.3,00,00,000/- (Previous Year — 2,00,00,000/-) to
Bombay Stock Exchange and Rs.4,00,00,000/- (Previous Year — 3,00,00,000) to MCX Stock

N/

Exchange Limited as on 31" March 2015 for meeting margin requirements.




Iv.

The Company has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 12,75,00,000/- (Previous Year —
Rs. 20, 48, 14,859/-} with banks for obtaining the above bank guarantees.

Counter guarantee given by the Parent Company (IFCI Limited) to a bank for issue of bank
guarantee to the subsidiary company IFCI Financial Services Limited — Rs.30,00,00,000/-
(previous year — Rs.30,00,00,000/-) and IFIN Commodities Limited — Rs.5,00,00,000/-
(previous year — Rs.5,00,00,000/-)

Other Contingent liabilities in respect of claims against the company:
(Rupees in lakhs)

Forum before which the case is pending No. of cases Amount

NSE Arbitrator Tribunal, Chennai i 6.00

Additional City Civil & Sessions Judge,

127.45
Bangalore :
Civil Court - Multi commodity Exchange of g

India Limited

Consumer court

10.25

The Company has entered into an agreement to sell electricity to TNEB @ Rs.3.39 per unit.

The rate however is on a conditional basis subject to the outcome of the appeal petition of the
TNEB before the honorable ATE and, excess tariff, if any, paid will be adjusted by TNEB
against the subsequent bills raised by the Company.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and not provided

for (net of advances) is Rs. NIL (Previous Year —Nil)
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V.

Earnings Per Share:

The Earning per Share [EPS] has been computed in accordance with the Accounting Standard

20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The numerators and

denominators used to calculate the EPS are:

(Amounts in Rupees)

As on Ason

Particulars 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Net Profit for the year available for the equity share
holders (Before extra-ordinary Item)

66,89,810 (6,52,60,504)
Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Weighted Average No. of outstanding equity shares
during the year — Basic & Diluted. 4,15,33,709 4,15,33,709
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (Before extra-
ordinary Item) 0.16 (1.57)
Net Profit for the year available for the equity share
holders (After extra-ordinary Item) 66,89,810 (6,52,60,504)
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (After extra-
ordinary [tem) 0.16 (1.57)

VL
(2)

(b)

©

(d)

Current and Deferred Taxation:

The Subsidiary Company IFIN Commodities Limited has provided Rs. 89,792/~ (Previous

Year — Rs. 7,70,000) as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

The Subsidiary Company IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly known as Narayan

Sriram Investments Private Limited) has provided Rs.1,02,03,622 (Previous Year Rs.

1,38,96,046) as per proviéions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

In the IFIN Credit Ltd. the provision for current tax has been made as per provisions of

Income Tax Act 1961.

During the year the tax effect on timing difference has resulted in Deferred Tax Liability and

as a matter of prudence the company has recongnized the same in the books. The Parent

Company IFCI Financial Services Limited has recognized Rs. 28,90,061 and the Subsidiary

Company IFIN Commodities Limited has not recognized the effect on timing difference.
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VII.  Managerial Remuneration:

{(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
To Whole Time Director
(a) Salary and Allowances 20,53,590 43,33,972
(b) Contribution to. PF and other funds 1,53,620 2,76,112

To Managing Director
(On deputation from IFCI Limited)

(a) Salary and Allowances 24,95,282 18,53,417
(b) Contribution to PF and other funds 1,71,562 59,140
(¢ ) Gratuity - 49,126
Total . 48,74,054 65,71,767

VIII.  Related Party Disclosure as per AS 18:

a) Holding Company : IFCI Limited
b) Subsidiary Companies : a) IFIN Commodities Limited
b) IFIN Credit Limited

¢) IFIN Securities Finance Limited (Formerly

known as Narayan Sriram Investments Private

Limited)
¢) Fellow Subsidiaries : a) [FCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
b) IFCI Factors Limited
¢) IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
d) SHCIL
e) MPCON
d) Key Management Personnel and relatives of such personnel:
Mr. Suneet Sukla : Managing Director (till 20.04.2014)
(On deputation from holding company IFCI Limited)
Mrs. S. Usha - : Managing Director (since 21.04.2014)
(On deputation from holding company IFCI Limited)
Mr. P.N. Swaminathan - Whole Time Director (till 11.04.2014)
Mr. A. Ramachandran : COO & Whole Time Director (since 25.07.2014)

(On deputation from holding company IFCI Limited)



e) Transaction with Related Parties:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Holding; /§ubsidiary/ ch,llow Key Managerial Personnel
Subsidiary Companies
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
1 Rent Paid to IFCI Ltd. 13,78,436 1,41,65,795 - -
Rent received from IFIN )
: Commodities Ltd. 35,15,124 53,06,628
Brokerage Received from ) _
3 [FCI Ltd 90,69,477 35,13,958
Portfolio Management i}
4 g ) - - -
Services fees received
5 Depository Services 25,86,770 27,36,870 - -
Reimbursement of Expenses ) .
6 to IFCI Limited. 4,94,879 1,47,00,162
Reimbursement of Exp
7 received from [FIN - - - -
Commodities Limited
8 Managerial Remuneration 4825719 - - -
Consultancy Fee received
9 from IFIN Commodities - - - -
Limited
jo |Lean Availed from IFIN 4,62,00,000 | 17,10,00,000 . —
Securities Finance Limited
Loan Repaid to IFIN ’ i )
1 Securities Finance Limited 4,62,00,000 17,10,00,000
Corporate Guarantee Issued to . ) )
12 IFIN Commodities ltd 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Interest  Paid to  IFIN ) .
13 Securities Finance Ltd 64,466 4,65,176
Equity contribution made in :
14 IFIN Securities  Finance 30,01,00,000 - - -
Limited
Equity contribution made in }
g IFIN Commodity Limited 5,00,00,000 - -
Brokerage received from 1FCI
4,643
16 Factors Lid 1,60,265 194,6 ) )
Reimbursement of Expenses .
17 from IFIN Securities Finance 1,00,00,000 99,98,995
Limited - .
Amount Due to [FIN 99 95
18 Securities Finance Limited ) _f”’)b’l 1 -




Reimbursement of Expenses . 14,40,000 14,40,000

from IFIN Credit Limited - -

"]
A_m(?unt Due from IFIN Credit 8.50.216 16,76.232

Limited - -
Insurance of TFIN

Commodities Ltd Paid by - 1,55,947

IFCI Financia! Services Litd. - -

Amount Payable by IFIN
Commodities to IFCI - 1,55,947
Financial Services Ltd .- -

Loan availed from IFCI
Venture Capital Ltd by IFIN 4,00,00,000 26,20,00,000
Securities Finance Ltd .

Loan repaid to IFCI Venture
Capital Ltd by IFIN Securities 4,00,00,000 22,20,00,000
Finance Ltd - -

Interest paid to IFCI Venture 6.90.411
Capital Ltd by IFIN Securities T 2,00,49,548
Finance Ltd - -

Loan availed from IFCI
Factors Ltd by IFIN Securities - 10,00,00,000
Finance Ltd ' - -

Loan repaid to IFCI Venture
Capital Ltd by IFIN Securities - 10,00,00,000
Lid

Interest paid to IFCI Venture
Capital Ltd by IFIN Securities - 26,63,013
Finance Ltd '

IX. Employee Benefits
Provisions for employee benefits under revised AS 15
(a) Defined Contribution plan: The amount recognized as an expense during the year is Rs.63,

83,812/ (Previous Year —Rs. 73, 78,589/-) towards Provident fund.

(b) Defined Benefit plan-Liability on account of encashment of leave to employees is paid
within one year from the end of the financial year. The expenses recognized in the profit

and loss account is Rs.53,87,298/- (previous year Rs. 28,87,327)

(¢) The Company has constituted The Employees Group Gratuity Fund under the Group
Gratuity Assurance Scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
scheme provides for Lump sum payment to vested emplovees at retirement, death while in

employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary

I
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payable for each year of completed service or part thereof in excess of 6 months. Vesting

occurs on completion of 5 years of service.
X.  Employee Benefits

The following table sets out the Gratuity plan as required under AS-15 (revised).

{(Amount in Rs.)
) T T Year2014.15

Particulars ]
Policy No - 605000514
Date of Valuation 1 01/042015
Membership Date ‘ .
Number of Members 219

- Average age ‘ 68.13
Average Monthly Salary T - 2633841 e
Average past Service 4_ 6.68 e
Valuation Method o | Projected unit credit method |
Resulits of Valuation o _
Present value of Past Service Benefit 5,493
Service cost ,, . Lo ug1ses
Fund with lic T 6288976
Accrued Gratuity I R XN T
Actuarial Assumptions _ o .
Mortality Rate o . LIC(1994-96) ultimate
Discountrate “ 8
Salary escalation rate v ‘ 5%
Withdrawal rate o S 1% to 3% depending on age
Total Amount Payable S I 64,540 _
Date of Valuation i ‘ 01/04/2015

XI.  Balances of Sundry Debtors, Advances recoverable are subject to confirmation from the
respective parties. In the opinion of the management the same are good and recoverable,

except for an amount of Rs.13,54,07,172/- which is provided for.

XII.  Company had initiated the process of identifying the vendors under Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The Company is yet to receive intimation from the
vendors stating their status under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006. In view of this, the company has not made any provision and disclosure required by

this Act. - o, A8
‘\_ﬁsﬂé}d( \/ - { o
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XII.  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee. Figures in bracket represent previous

year’s figures.
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note no. 2 Share Capital

{Amount in Rs)

As at 31st March 2015

As at 31st March 2014

of the year

Share Capital
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,000 50,00,00,000 | 5,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 | 41,53,37,090
Subscribed & Paid up .
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 41,533,709 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090
Total 41,533,709 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090
] As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014
Particulars
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Sh N . »
ares outstanding at the 41533709 | 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 | 415,337,090
beginning of the year
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the
year R i
Shares outstanding at the end
41,533,709 415,337,090 | 41,533,709 415,337,090

(Amount in Rs)

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March 2015

As at 31st March 2014

No. of Shares | % of Holding No. of % of Holding
held Shares held
IFCI Limited and nominees 39,363,809 94.78 | 39,363,809 94,78
Ms. Chandra Ramesh 1,757,619 4.23 1,757,619 4.23
Mr. D V Ramesh 412,281 0.99 412,281 0.99

for consideration other than cash on preferential basis by convertion of debt of

Rs.76.25 Crore into equity

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity share, i.e. equity shares having face value of
Rs.10/- per share entitled to one vote per share.

(CD

On Olst November 2011, 3,24,60,622 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were allotted to IFCI Ltd




IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note No. 3 Reserves and Surplus

{Amountin Rs. )y

Particulars

As at March 31st
2015

As at March 31st
2014

a. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

b. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance

{+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

¢. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance

Add : Securities premium credited on Share issue
Closing Balance

d. Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

e. Other Reserves (Specifiy the nature and purpose
of each reserve)

i)Amalgamation

|Reserve:

Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year

Closing Balance

ii) General Reserve:
Opening Balance
(+) Current Year Transfer

(-} Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

f. Surplus:

Opening balance

(+) Net Profit/{Net Loss) For the current year
(+) Transfer from Reserves

(-) Transfer to Reserves

Closing Balance

451,643,790

451,643,790

451,643,790

451,643,790

1,745,305

1,745,305

1,745,305

1,745,305

9,501,851

9,179,620
322,231

9,501,851

9,501,851

(144,926,635)
6,365,809

(79,343,900)
(65,260,504)

322,231

(138,560,826)

(144,926,635)

Total

324,330,120

317,964,311

Note No. 4 Other Long Term Liabilities

IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at 31 March
2015

As at 31 March
2014

(a) Trade Payables

(b)Security Deposit and Sundry deposits

7,169,459

6,553,211

Total

7,169,459

6,553,211 |




[FCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note No. 5 Short Term Borrowings

(Amount in Rs)

Short Term Borrowings

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

|Secured

(a) Loans repayable on demand

(b) Loans and advances from related parties
(Secured By Books Debts)

(c) Deposits

Unsecured

(a) Loans repayable on demand

(b) Loans and advances from related parties
(c) Deposits

(d) Other loans and advances from Financial
Institutions

240,000,000

73,000,000

39,833,776

290,000,001

313,000,000

329,833,777

Note No. 6 Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in Rs)

. As at 31st March| As at 31st March
Particulars
2015 2014
Short Term Borrowings
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt - -
(b) Current maturities of finance lease - -
(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,463,836 -
(d) Loans and advances from related parties - -
(e) Income received in advance 1,492,082 -
(f) Other payables
Creditors for expenses 12,968,852 5,254,657
Statutory dues 20,102,937 20,767,365
O_ther liabilities 22,644,933 20,315,439
Total 58,672,640 46,337,461
Gy }%\: W
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note No. 7 Short Term Provisions

(Amount in Rs)

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars 2015 2014
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Salary & Reimbursements
Contribution to PF and Statutory funds - -
Gratuity 310,000 321,222
Leave Encashment 2,855,068 760,160
Provision for Bonus 77,000 116,889
(b) Others
Provision for Sub-Standard Assets - 23,183,079
Provision for doubtful debts 46,402,206 10,385,413
Provision for Standard Assets 1,482,723 1,697,565
Others - 2,496,507
Total 51,126,997 38,960,835
}i// %}V i{}\
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IECI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 9 Non Current Investments

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

(a) Investment in Equity instruments
(g) Other non-current investments
(specify nature)

Total (A)

Less : Provision for dimunition in the
value of Investments

Total

Particulars

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

Aggregate amount of quoted
investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments

[ 0&
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Noie 10 Long Term Loans and Advances

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2015 2014
a. Capital Advances -
Secured, considered good -
Unsecured, considered good 1,513,710 1,513,710
Doubtful -
Less: Provision for doubtful advances -
‘ 1,513,710 1,513,710
b. Security Deposits
Secured, considered good 350,000 | 350,000
Unsecured, considered good * 68,882,074 116,875,287
Doubtful -
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits -
* Includes Rs. 7,58,85,000 held with
various stock exchanges/clearing
member for F&O segment. -
69,232,074 117,225,287
c. Loans and advances to related parties
Secured, considered good 311,382,894
Unsecured, considered good - -
Doubtful -
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and
advances -
311,382,894 -
d. Other loans and advances (specify
nature) -
Other Loans & Advances 6,314,476 51,172,298
Advance Tax (net of provisions) - -
Doubtful - -
6,314,476 51,172,298
388,443,154 169,911,295 | /
‘%/ %ﬂ’ - “\A‘t\”«y
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IFC! FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 11 Current Investments

(Amount in Rs)

. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
2015 2014
(a) Investment in Equity 30,512,800 40,470,984
instruments
Total (A) 30,512,800 40,470,984
Less : Provision for dimunition in 17,147,223
the value of Investments 4 19,091,086
Total 13,365,577 21,379,898
. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
2015 2014
Aggregate amount of quoted 13,365,577 21,379,898
investments
z\\ , [@Z . \( -~
"3?5,’" () e S
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 12 Trade receivable

(Amount inRs)

. As at 31st March| As at 31st March
Trade Receivables 2015 2014
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six
months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 77,786,885 32,346,521
Unsecured, considered good 10,597,982 82,262,059
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,487,662 79,686,143
89,872,529 194,294,723
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 1,487,662 79,686,143
88,384,867 114,608,580
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six
months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good 19,420,679 39,555,767
Unsecured, considered good 299,443 770,681
Unsecured, considered doubtful 136,700,792 49,730,828
156,420,914 90,057,276
Less: Provision for doubtful debts* 136,700,792 49,730,828
* Includes Rs. 1,53,03,165 receivables from IFCI Limited 19,720,122 40,326,448
Total 108,104,989 154,935,028

\
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IECI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 13 Cash and bank balances

(Amount in Rs)

. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
2015 2014
a. Balances with banks
In Current Accounts with Banks 71,259,910 67,287,415
Margin money -
Fixed Deposit 222,835,563 224,534,859
Cash equivalents and Bank
Deposits i
Bank deposits with more than 12
. 20,000,000 -
months maturity
b. Cheques, drafts on hand - -
c. Cash on hand 4,293 32,610
314,099,766 291,854,884

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars

Note 14 Short term loans and advances

As at 31st March
2015

As at 31st March
2014

a. Loans and advances to related
parties

Secured, considered good
|Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful
Less:Provision for doubtful loans

b. Others
Other Loans and Advances
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

908,635 -

17,046

908,635

17,046

314,316,161

113,657,576 -

647,234,197

Advance Tax (net of provisions) 25,942,157 (2,248,666)
Sundry Deposits 3,628,068 1,097,189
Prepaid Expenses 3,932,081 165,365
Secured, considered good - 87,877,251
461,476,043 734,125,336
| 462,384,678 734,142,382
Note 15 Other current assets (Amount in Rs)
Particul As at 31st March As at 31st March
articulars 2015 2014

Interest accrued on Deposits 17,711,033 27,044,197
Other assets 231,149 74,604
17,942,182 27,118,801

5
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED {(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)
Note 16 Revenue from Operations

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2015 | 31st March 2014

Operating revenues:
Brokerage On Stock Broking 154,959,698 132,417,707
Commission On Mutual Fund 1,967,086 1,522,439
Insurance Commission 102,985 99,602
Loan Syndication Fee 100,000 1,864,000
Fees for Merchant Banking 160,000 280,000
Depository/Other Opreating Income 6,693,342 7,660,098
Commision From IPO / Bonds 16,027,387 5,507,671
Commision On Fixed deposits 2,802,144 6,258,670
Account Opening Charges 233,681 227,373
Dividend income 310,164 818,409
Processing Fees 4,225,000 4,817,500
Interest Receipt from Loans 93,758,424 83,876,773

Total 281,339,911 245,350,242

Note 17 Other Operating Income

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Sale of Power / Electricity 4,809,830 6,033,574
Delayed Payment Interest - -
Consultance Fee Received 18,533,987 1,040,750
Total 23,343,817 7,074,324

Note 18 Other Income

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

For thé Year ended
31st March 2015

For the Year ended
31st March 2014

Rental Income 3,515,124 1,720,335
Miscellaneous Income 10,335,733 17,376,555 |

Interest income 21,973,820 23,617,104

Profit on Sale of Investments 2,892,384 2,046,003

Total 38,717,061 44,759,997
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note 19 Empoyee Benefits expenses

(Amount in Rs)

particula For the Year ended |For the Year ended
articutars 31st March 2015 | 31st March 2014
(a) Salaries and incentives 96,387,694 106,700,687
(b) Contributions to - - -
Provident fund & Employee State Insurance 6,383,812 7,378,589
Gratuity fund contributions 155,334 1,901,596
Employee State Insurance 107,867 -
(c) Staff welfare expenses 3,336,113 7,199,166
Total 106,370,820 123,180,038

{Amount in Rs)

Note 20 Finance Cost

particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Interest expenses 43,040,833 -

Bank Financial Charges 2,041,169 33,526,456
Total 45,082,002 33,526,456

///7




IFC! FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note No. 21 Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs)
T

. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars
2015 2014
Particulars Rs. Rs.
Fees To Clearing Member 1,744,955 1,614,787
Information Technology Exp 197,934 738,887
Data Feed Charges 1,493,837 1,659,994
Depository Participant Expenses 212,996 311,278
Broking Stamp Expenses 9,365 9,263
Turnover Based Fees - Sebi 674,539 48,985
Professional & Consultancy Charges 42,406,088 26,627,831
Transaction Charges 1,205,787 928,281
Vsat Charges 19,101 20,674
Advertisement 216,195 12,107
\udit Fees 1,377,500 1,599,948
Electricity Charges 5,034,502 4,379,270 |
Insurance Expenses 1,307,054 mlt,26_1,264'
Commission Paid 16,613,689 11,545,687 |
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,594,044ﬂw -#5;2,_2_3}3,_1_6_7#
Postage & Telegram o I@ss—fff_ o 1_;317_?}9_
Printing & Stationery 1,842,690 j_wlﬂg,g‘?g_
Bank Charges 8,406 | -
Rent 32,586,888 29,241,513
Rates & Taxes 623,702 1,578,688
Repairs & Maintenance 1,065,868 B a 3,91%1__
Sitting Fees 553,000 246,000 |
Membership Fee And Subscription 4,768,793 2,190,173 |
Telephone Expenses 7,219,385 7,399,252 |
Training Expenses 114,313 163,773 |
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 5,246,043 3,784,893
Office Maintenance ’ 5,611,150 5,699,017 |
Business Development Expenses 270,642 i A_M294'93_1,
Contbh to inv prot fund 4,394 N ' 621,432 |
Penal Charges 2012| -
Meeting Expenses 393,145 — -]
Loss on sale of assets - 2,196,032
Staff Welfare 138,494 -
Annual Maintenance Charges 462,077 -
Arbitration fees Charges 10,000 -
Processing Charges 48,750 -
TOTAL 137,755,450 | 113,131,”704’4_
\E 7 i ) A Y
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IFCI FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED(CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT)

Note: 22 Provision for Bad & Doubtfu 7

(Amount in Rs)

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars 2015 2014
Particulars Rs. Rs.
Diminution in the value of Securities
held as stock in trade (1,397,178) (1,936,710)
Bad Debts Written off 2,439,364 ¢~ 2,222,935
Requirement (546,685) (15,166)
Provision for Doubtful Debts and (2,113,928) 34,784,821
Provision for Standard Assets as per (214,842)
Provision for substandard Asset 23,218,944 23,948,070
21,385,675 59,003,950
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